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Chairman’s Statement 3 i # 3

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”),
I present the annual report of Winfoong
International Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2015.
[

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$26.5 million.

DIVIDENDS
No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS,
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

During the year, the Group continued to engage in property related
businesses, provision of horticultural services, securities trading
business and money lending business. The Group's revenue
of the year was mainly derived from sales of properties and
horticultural services.

The Group recorded loss for the year of approximately
HK$26,469,000. The increase in net loss was mainly due to
decrease in other net income in 2015.

The Company remains confident in the Hong Kong property
market, the prestigious location and the superior quality of the
Group’s development properties.

The net asset value of the Company per share as at 31 December

2015 was approximately HK$0.10 (2014: HK$0.11) based on the
2,819,102,084 (2014: 2,635,802,084) shares issued.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 28 employees.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i $#t 3

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

All the Group’s funding and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. There is no
significant change in respect of treasury and financing policies
from the information disclosed in the Company's latest
annual report. The Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated and the Group conducts its business transactions
principally in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate risk of the
Group is not considered significant, no financial instruments for
hedging purpose are employed.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there was no outstanding
bank loan. The Group's working capital requirements are funded
by bank deposits.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my colleagues
on the Board and the staff members of the Group for their strong
support and valuable contribution.

Li Feng Mao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report 3% i %

Year ended 31 December 2015 #E - FE—HFEf - H=—+—HIFFE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to raising the standard of corporate
governance within the Group in order to enhance the transparency
in disclosure of material information. The Group has complied
with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the "“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year
except the deviations stated in the following paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific
enquiry by the Company, all directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CoMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprises three executive
directors, one non-executive director and three independent non-
executive directors, who have appropriate corporate experience.
The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2015 was as follows:

Executive directors:

Chen Meng

Mak Tin Sang

Yuan Li Min (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive director:
Li Feng Mao (Chairman)

Independent non-executive directors:
Leung Po Hon

Li Jing Bo

Shigeki Tanaka

Details of the directors’ qualifications, directorships and other
particulars are set out on pages 32 to 33.
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Corporate Governance Report 3% i %

Year ended 31 December 2015 #% ~F—#4F A~ H=—+—H IF /%

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

FuncTions oF THE BoARD

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs
of the Company and the Group. Apart from its statutory duties,
the Board reviews and approves the Company’s and the Group’s
strategic plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions, annual business plans, reviews the financial
performance of the Company and the Group and evaluates the
performance and compensation of senior management personnel.

Guidelines are established which specify certain material
transactions that require the Board's approval which include
mergers and acquisitions, divestments and major capital
expenditure.

The Board has separate and independent access to management
and the company secretary. Management provides the Board with
reports of the Company’s and the Group's performance, financial
position and prospects, and these are reviewed by the Board at
Board meeting. Directors may obtain independent professional
advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company’s and the
Group's expense.

BoarD MEETINGS

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis during the year to
review the Company’s and the Group's operations and financial
results. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board held
sixteen meetings. Details of attendance of the directors at the
Board meetings are as follows:
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Attendance at Board meetings

EEEFREERE

Executive directors: PITEE -
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick §E 2

(resigned on 27 November 2015) (RZZE—AF+—HZTtHZ5) 15/15
Cheong Sim Eng fBALER

(resigned on 27 November 2015) (RZE—hF+—A=Z++RA28) 14/15
Cheong Hooi Kheng eVl

(resigned on 27 November 2015) (RZZE—HF+—AZ++tHZ2E) 14/15
Chen Meng B

(appointed on 6 November 2015) (RZZE—RF+—HRBEZRE) 0/3
Mak Tin Sang BERAE

(appointed on 6 November 2015) (RZE—RF+—ARBEZE) 3/3
Yuan Li Min (Chief Executive Officer) RIR (7T 48%)

(appointed on 6 November 2015) (RZE—RF+—ARNBEZF) 1/3
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-executive director:
Li Feng Mao (Chairman)
(appointed on 6 November 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Kwik Sam Aik

(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Leung Wing Ning

(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Leung Po Hon

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Li Jing Bo

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Shigeki Tanaka

(appointed on 6 November 2015)

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company HEZ
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directors at the general meeting are as follows:

Executive directors:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick

(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Cheong Sim Eng

(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Cheong Hooi Kheng

(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Chen Meng

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Mak Tin Sang

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Yuan Li Min (Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
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Year ended 31 December 2015 #% ~F—#4F A~ H=—+—H IF /%

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

A ()

Attendance at general meeting

BRAEHERE

Non-executive director: HHITESE :
Li Feng Mao (Chairman) EEX(EE)

(appointed on 6 November 2015) (RZE—RF+—ARNBEEZT) N/A TN E A
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHITESE
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert FRIA&

(resigned on 27 November 2015) (R=E—AF+—A=-++tHEF) 1/1
Kwik Sam Aik =i

(resigned on 27 November 2015) (R=ZE—AF+—HA=Z++tHZ#) N
Leung Wing Ning oK

(resigned on 27 November 2015) (RZZE—AF+—HA=Zt+tHZH) 11
Leung Po Hon REZ

(appointed on 6 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF+—AHEZT) N/A 3 A
Li Jing Bo FEM

(appointed on 6 November 2015) (RZE—RF+—ARNBEEZT) N/A TN E A
Shigeki Tanaka FH A A

(appointed on 6 November 2015) (RZZ—RF+—HARBAEZRT) N/A N3

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
there are three independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive directors, one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or relevant financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 6 November 2015 to 5 November 2018.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all of
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code provides that all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the directors of the Company.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 #E - FE—HFEf - H=—+—HIFFE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (CONTINUED)

The Company had provided to all directors with the “A Guide on
Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, the directors had noted and studied
the above mentioned document. The Company had received from
each of the directors of the Company the confirmations on taking
continuous professional training.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles

of chairman and chief executive (“CE") should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. From 1 January
2015 to 27 November 2015, Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and
Mr. Cheong Sim Eng are both the joint chairman of the Board as
well as the Group's joint CE/managing director. From 6 November
2015, Mr. Li Feng Mao has been appointed as the chairman of
the Board and Mr. Yuen Li Min has been appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company. Given the size and that the
Company's and the Group’s current business operations and
administration have been relatively stable and straightforward, the
Board is satisfied that the current structure is able to effectively
discharge the duties of both positions.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Employees (including directors) are remunerated according
to their performance and working experience as well as
the prevailing market conditions. On top of basic salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options may by granted to eligible
employee by reference to the individual's performance. In
addition, the Group also provides social security benefits to its
staff such as mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 #% ~F—#4F A~ H=—+—H IF /%

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company’s corporate governance functions are carried out
by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board in compliance with code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board; (b) to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of the
directors and senior management of the Company; (c) to review
and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and the directors of the Company; and
(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and as at the date of
this report, the Board had reviewed the corporate governance
matters of the Company. Saved for the deviation disclosed under
the "Chairman and Chief Executive” section, the Company had
complied with the principles and applicable code provisions of the
CG Code and was not aware of any non-compliance to relevant
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

AupiT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment and removal
of external auditor, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting, and overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company. At
present, the Audit Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr. Leung Po Hon, Mr. Li Jing Bo and Mr. Shigeki Tanaka, all of
whom are independent non-executive directors. Mr. Leung Po
Hon currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 #E - FE—HFEf - H=—+—HIFFE

BOARD COMMITTEES

AupiT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee held HE
two meetings to make recommendation on the appointment of
external auditor, review financial statements, financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems of the
Company. Details of attendance of each Audit Committee

member at the meetings are as follows:

Names of the Audit Committee members
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert
(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Leung Wing Ning
(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Kwik Sam Aik
(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Leung Po Hon (Chairman of the Committee)
(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Li Jing Bo
(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Shigeki Tanaka
(appointed on 6 November 2015)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference.
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Committee meetings
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The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to review and make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all directors
and senior management of the Company. At present, the
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, comprising
three independent non-executive directors, Mr. Leung Po Hon,
Mr. Li Jing Bo and Mr. Shigeki Tanaka, Mr. Li Jing Bo currently
serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
REMUNERATION CoMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings to review and make
recommendation on the remuneration policy and structure relating
to all directors and senior management of the Company. Details
of attendance of each Remuneration Committee member at the
meeting are as follows:

WRER AT (8
L EAE )

HE-Z-—AFT-_A=1+—HILFE %
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EHEREZ SFHEZEeXELFEEH
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Attendance at Remuneration
Committee meeting

FHESESRHERH

Names of the Remuneration
Committee members
Leung Wing Ning
(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert
(resigned on 27 November 2015)
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
(resigned on 27 November 2015)

Li Jing Bo (Chairman of the Committee)

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Leung Po Hon

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Shigeki Tanaka

(appointed on 6 November 2015)

FMEEERENA

(R=ZE—hF+—HA=Z++tRAZ28) 3/3
BRIASE

(RZE—hF+—HAZT+EAZEE) 3/3

(R=ZE—hF+—HA=Z++tRAZ28) 3/3

SR(ZEE+/E)

(RZE—RF+—ANBEZM) N/A T3
REZ

(RZZ—AF+—ABEZME) N/ATE A
FH A 7 A

(R=Z—AF+—ABEZT) N/A T3

The remuneration of directors is determined with reference
to their performance and working experience as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Details of emoluments of directors
for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements. The emoluments paid to senior management
for the year ended 31 December 2015 falls within the following
bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000

£% 1,000,000 % 7T
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1,000,001 7L E 2,000,0008 7T
2,000,001 # 7T % 3,000,000 7% 7T
3,000,001 &I E 4,000,000/8 7T
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Year ended 31 December 2015 #E - FE—HFEf - H=—+—HIFFE

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

NoMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference. The
primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the Board
the suitable candidates for directorship after consideration of the
nominees’ independence and quality in order to ensure fairness
and transparency of all nominations. At present, the Nomination
Committee consists of three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Leung Po Hon, Mr. Li Jing Bo and Mr. Shigeki
Tanaka, Mr. Shigeki Tanaka currently serves as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board. Details of attendance of each
Nomination Committee member at the meetings are as follows:

WP R B (5)
RAZHE

ARRERZIRRZE S ([REEZE®])
B AEHBEGE - REZBE I 2R
BEREMRNESTELRE AR AR
Zalt YEZEBRBAZBIMERERR
MEEFERAENEEFRUMREAFLEZ
@ UNERMAREATFRAZAE - B
B REZEEH=-RBIIFATEEA
B BNRBEZESLAE - FRIKEEREP K
S A XBEERBEIREAZES T
B o

BE_ZT-AFT_A=1+—BHLEE &
HERBERTAREEURTEFTE LR
B RERER  SREZEERELFES
M

Attendance at Nomination
Committee meetings

REZESSBRLERY

Names of the Nomination REEZEERERSR

Committee members
Kwik Sam Aik %‘-IE}E

(resigned on 27 November 2015) (RZZF—AF+—HZT+tHZ8) 2/2
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert %LA/

(resigned on 27 November 2015) (R—ZE—RF+—HA-ttHEE) 2/2
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick $E N 2

(resigned on 27 November 2015) (R=FE—hF+—A=++tHZ28) 2/2
Shigeki Tanaka (Chairman of the Committee) B (Z58+/E)

(appointed on 6 November 2015) (RZZE—RF+—HRAEZE) N/A 78 R
Leung Po Hon DEE

(appointed on 6 November 2015) (RZE—RF+—ARAEZT) N/A 7~
Li Jing Bo FR /)i

(appointed on 6 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF+—A BEZE) N/A i A
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2015,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group at the date and of the Group's results and cash
flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared on the going
concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
accounting standards. The directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 34 to 35.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the auditor of the
Company and its subsidiaries would receive approximately
HK$481,000 (2014: HK$440,000) for audit and audit related
services, HK$NIl (2014: HK$Nil) for tax services and HK$140,000
(2014: HK$60,000) for other services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged in a service contract with an external
service provider, Ms. Ho Wing Yan (“Ms. Ho"), who was
appointed as the Company Secretary. The financial controller
of the Company is the primary corporate contact person of the
Company with Ms. Ho.

Being the Company Secretary, Ms. Ho plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within
the Board and that Board policy and procedures are followed. Ms.
Ho is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

14 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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COMPANY SECRETARY (CONTINUED)

Ms. Ho is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Ho continues to study professional
course of corporate governance and has extensive experience in
the company secretarial field for listed companies. Ms. Ho is also
a holder of the Practitioner’'s Endorsement issued by The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. According to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Ms. Ho took more than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2015.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

CONVENING A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at
Room 1904-1916, 19/F., Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, VWanchai,
Hong Kong by post for the attention of the Company Secretary.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To foster effective communications, the Company provided all
necessary information to the shareholders in its annual report and
interim report. The Directors or other appropriate members of
senior management of the Company will also respond to inquiries
from shareholders and investors promptly.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there has been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
Shareholder(s), at his/their own expense, holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of requisition the right to vote at general meeting; or (ii)
not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a written request stating
the resolution intended to be moved at the next annual general
meeting. The requisition signed by the relevant shareholder(s) must
be deposited at the registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong at Room 1904-1916, 19/F., Sun Hung Kai
Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the annual
general meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than seven days before the annual general
meeting in the case of any other requisition. The request will be
verified with the branch share registrar of the Company and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in
the notice for such general meeting.

As mentioned in the above section headed “Convening a Special
General Meeting”, shareholder(s) can make a requisition to convene
a special general meeting and move forward a resolution thereat. The
requisition signed by the relevant shareholder(s) must be deposited at
the registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
at Room 1904-1916, 19/F., Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary no
later than seven days prior to the date of special general meeting. Only
when the request has been verified with the branch share registrar to
be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the notice for such general meeting.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

During the year, the Board complied with the code provisions on
risk management and internal control as set out in the CG Code.
The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the
likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts
of interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to
prevent the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of
interest.
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The directors herein present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company consists of investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

BusiNEss REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business and its outlook are set
out in the sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion & Analysis. Certain financial key performance
indicators are provided in the section of Summary Financial
Information. No important event affecting the Group has occurred
since the end of the financial year under review.

The Company remains confident in the Hong Kong property
market, the prestigious location and the superior quality of the
Group's development properties.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO") for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group
also complies with the requirements of Employment Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety for the interest of
employees of the Group.

The Group respects the environment and is committed to
minimizing its carbon footprints as a socially responsible
enterprise in Hong Kong. Carbon footprint is defined as the total
amount of direct and indirect emissions of Green House Gases
(GHGs) expressed in terms of the equivalent amount of Carbon
Dioxide of (CO,) emission. Non-hazardous wastes produced from
the Group mainly consist of used paper such as office papers and
marketing materials. To minimize the impact of carbon footprints
on the environment, the Group implements the following
practices to use paper efficiently:

e Duplex printing is set as the default mode for most network
printers;

e Employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely;
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

BusINEss REVIEW (CONTINUED)
e Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper;

e Paper waste is recycled instead of being directly disposed of in
landfills;

e Paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling; and

e Boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as containers
to collect single-sided paper for reuse purpose.

Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse
impact on the environment and natural resources. A typical
commercial building uses more energy for lighting than for other
electric equipment. The Group is determined to reduce energy
consumption and implement conservation practices to reduce
the effect of carbon footprint. Air conditioning and light zone
arrangements reduce unnecessary electricity usage; employees
enforce good practices in maintenance of lighting and electric
equipment to ensure they are kept in good and proper condition to
maximize efficiency.

KEY Risk FACTORS
The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

IMpPACT OF LOCAL AND INTERNATIONAL REGULATIONS

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension
of the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and markets
as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.

THIRD-PARTY Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in
parts of business to improve performance and efficiency of the
Group. While gaining the benefits from external service providers,
the management realizes that such operational dependency
may pose a threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses
in service including reputation damage, business disruption
and monetary losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group
engages only reputed third-party providers and closely monitors
their performance.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

KEey RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognizes the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual
needs. The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all
employees. No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace
accidents are found in the year under review.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner.
The departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just
manner. The Group’s requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to suppliers before the commencement of a
project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of business
intelligence to understand customer trends and needs and
regular analyze on customer feedback. The Group also conducts
comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality
products and services are offered to the customers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
36 to 115.

DIVIDENDS
No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out below.

20 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

FEERH (8)

BT~ %5 R0 i 3 2B R
AEBBBREZARMNAS  FXEHRE
g RIZERA LT ZREHERABEIN - LKL
KERINKRA - ARER/ME R TIRMHE
FERZ2NTHERE RAFEEEE  HE
HIRAE T e i) T B S)

AEBEGEMAERN THERE  UBRE
RRBANTNLBEEFPFE - AFIHER
BIF BRETRERRBOAEEAR 2
FRALE - AEBEMNRE RRETRNF 6
TRt R RS E L RAFIBIE -

AEBERMBETEFPNBERER  EBT
RZARRE BEMNABESRE BEE
FBZEEFE  URERIMEPHIRERE
B AEEMETEEAE Mgk - ERE
RUBENERMRBTEP -

W
AEBEE-_ZT—AF T _A=+—HILHF
EzEEMBRERERANA R EAEBRZ
Bz BRR BRI B RERFEICEEE 115
H o

JBe
R AR B E RN - EETRBIE R

BB -

S 5 R 2
AEESTEANREE 2 EEREE - &
ERIEERBEF BT -



Directors’ Report 3 3¢ € 3t 1

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RESULTS

B (4
3

Year ended 31 December

BEt=A=t-ALFE

2014 2013 2012 2011
“T-mF —T-=F ZE-ZF —ZT——F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEr FEr FET FET

5,351 4,880 4,629 46,721

(24,043) (37,144) (28,611) (22,825)

(24,043) (37,144) (28,611) (22,825)

(24,043) (37,144) (28,611) (22,825)

2015

—E-R%F

HK$'000

TET

Revenue Wz 12,210

Loss before taxation BRI AIE R (26,469)

Income tax expense FEHAY -

Loss for the year AEEER (26,469)

Attributable to: JEfk -

Equity shareholders of KLOAEEREA

the Company (26,469)

Non-controlling interests FEIER S -

(26,469)

(24,043) (37,144) (28,611) (22,825)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

RERE - ARSIk B

As at 31 December

Rt+=ZB=t+—-H

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“Z-Rf —T-NE —T-=F —T-—F —T——F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET THL THL TR THL
Total assets BEE 293,754 299,861 332,001 360,137 397,048
Total liabilities LaR (5,468) (9,415) (19,147) (20,724) (25,394)
288,286 290,446 312,854 339413 371,654

Equity attributable to equity KARERFAA
shareholders of the Company EitiER 288,286 290,446 312,854 339,413 371,654
Non-controlling interests JeER iR - - - - -
288286 290,446 312,854 339413 371,654
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FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out
in note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company's reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to
approximately HK$73,880,000 (2014: HK$109,516,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately HK$500,000 (2014: HK$200,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 72% (2014: 45%) of the total sales
for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 58% (2014: 25%).

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted
for 81% (2014: 75%) of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
60% (2014: 23%).

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their close
associates, nor those shareholders which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares had
any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick

(resigned on 27 November 2015)*
Cheong Sim Eng

(resigned on 27 November 2015)*
Cheong Hooi Kheng

(resigned on 27 November 2015)*
Chen Meng

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Mak Tin Sang

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Yuan Li Min (Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed on 6 November 2015)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Li Feng Mao (Chairman)
(appointed on 6 November 2015)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

(resigned on 27 November 2015)*
Leung Wing Ning

(resigned on 27 November 2015)*
Kwik Sam Aik

(resigned on 27 November 2015)*
Leung Po Hon

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Li Jing Bo

(appointed on 6 November 2015)
Shigeki Tanaka

(appointed on 6 November 2015)

* Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Mr. Cheong Sim Eng and Ms. Cheong Hooi
Kheng resigned as executive Directors and Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, Mr.
Leung Wing Ning and Mr. Kwik Sam Aik resigned as independent non-
executive Directors in order to devote more time on their other business
commitments.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company's bye-laws, Mr.
Chen Meng, Mr. Mak Tin Sang, Mr. Yuan Li Min, Mr. Li Feng Hao,
Mr. Leung Po Hon, Mr. Li Jing Bo and Mr. Shigeki Tanaka shall
hold office, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as
directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has maintained appropriated directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
directors and chief executive in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company as required to be disclosed under
and within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") were as follows:—

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY:—

# (%)

RBEARRE 2 AAIE86(2) - RENERITZ
BRRAFAGE  BREXRE  BRERL
FRERESE - FEXELE  REEXRE - F
SRELERAPEKEEEREBERTES
BNAER  UHRBERET/NTES -

o2 B 5 5
EENIBBRTZRRBFAGEREET L
EEVEERRBITLATHRRAR—F
NEFR IR E CEERERSIN) M L2 R
BEK -

W2
ARR—BHEREZERARFEIEABEE
HEMETRR  MZzENEENEEFTD
FBEGXENFRNER - BBRDELEN
H o

w2 fld
R-ZE—AF+_A=+—H EFERTE
THRABRARRZD - ARG REH
o EEREESRPEGO((EFREE
P11 8 XV B2 MBAE T HE 2 s KA
BT —

TS 2 5 BBy B AR B BBy Z 47 AY : —

Nature of Number and class
interest of shares held Percentage
Name of directors EEpE ERME FEROEE RER Bt
Li Feng Mao FTEX Interest of controlled 2,112,395,735 74.93%
corporation
P E R
Note: B 3E

Mr. Li Feng Mao (“Mr. Li") was deemed to have 2,112,395,735 shares held by HK

Guoxin Investment Group Limited by virtue of it being wholly-owned by Mr. Li.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, taken to be interested
or deemed to have any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, that
were required to be entered into the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT
Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has two share option schemes which were adopted
on 15 April 2002 (“share option scheme 2002") and 25 June 2013
("share option scheme 2013") for the purposes of enabling the
Group to provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of the Group and to enable the Group to recruit and/or
to retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group.

The directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite eligible participants, including the directors or any employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or an affiliate, and any
consultant, agent, or advisor of the Group or an affiliate, to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
share option schemes at any time during a period as determined
by the directors of the Company and not exceeding ten years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised. The offer of a
grant of share options may be accepted within twenty-one days
from the date of offer upon an initial payment of HK$1 in total for
each acceptance. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant,
which must be a business day;

A B (B)

BEXHEEEN RZEBE-—HEF+-A
=t—H REESFIAEERIIEXVEBET
KR8NE  MIEARNBZEERETBITHA
BWEESRIERARRR 2B - BERD
HEFT  BHATAEMCERIARMAR
ARBREBER 7 RMEGIIFE 25 FE
ZETMPRESRBEFETRAANGRR
B M BERZ P o

B 5% b 54 ik
RERTSIRRFE R B AR RES
#p - FERTIMT

U e i )
RAREMEBEBBRETSE - DHRRZEE
“HFNA+REBR([ T - FHEREFE])

—E—=FRNA-+tHRA(Z=ZE—=F8
RS D) RN BESASBEEESKE
REBRSHEEHAEBFZIELNER &
BHEEZ NIREAEET]RER, %8
BABREE - WRSIHAEBBMERZ A
7 o
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BEAERSHBARNZ EFREMES
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(b)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and

(¢)  the nominal value of a share.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2002

There is no ordinary share available for issue under the share
option scheme 2002 as at the date of this report. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted to any one participant in any twelve-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there is no options
outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed. The share
option scheme 2002 expired on 15 April 2012.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2013

There are 74,765,208 ordinary shares available for issue under
the share option scheme 2013 representing approximately 2.65%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report. The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted to any one participant in any twelve-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a total of 183,300,000
share options have been exercised under the share option scheme
2013, while none of such share options had been granted, lapsed
nor cancelled. As at 31 December 2015, no share option entitling
the holders of which to subscribe for the Company's ordinary
shares was outstanding.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) o B A it ) (4)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2013 (CONTINUED) TR AR B ()
MOVEMENTS OF SHARE OPTIONS DURING THE YEAR A A JBE Ik I 5 )
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Outstanding Outstanding
Price asat  Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled asat
List of per share 1 January during during during during 31 December
Grantees Date of Grant of options 2015 theyear theyear  the year the year 215
N-%-1f HoZ-1F
BhiEhE -A-H AEE REE  AER AEE  TZA=T-H
ARAZE REAH k8 HRTE  BE B BRM it HARTE
HKS
&
Directors E%
Cheaong Pin Chuan, Patrick 18 December 2013 0.1168 26,000,000 - (26,000,000 - - -
(resigned on 27 November 2015) “3-F+2A1\8
ENR(AE-RET-A-TAZR)
Cheong Sim Eng 18 December 2013 0.1168 26,000,000 - (26,000,000 - - -
(resigned on 27 November 2015) Z2-=E+2AT\A
EYE(NE-RET-ACttAZE)
Cheong Hooi Kheng 18 December 2013 0.1168 26,000,000 - (26,000,000 - - -
[resigned on 27 November 2015) “E-ZE+-A1\H
EZHNE-RET-A-TtAZR)
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert 18 December 2013 0.1168 700,000 - (700,000 - - -
(resigned on 27 November 2015) Z2-=E+2AT\A
RWB(R-2-RFT-ATtAZH)
Leung Wing Ning 18 December 2013 0.1168 700,000 - (700,000 - - -
[resigned on 27 November 2015) “E-ZE+-A1H
2KER-F-RET-A-TtAZR)
Kwik Sam Ak 18 December 2013 0.1168 700,000 - (700,000) - - -
(resigned on 27 November 2015) Z2-=E+2AT\A
D=R(AE-RET-A-TLAZR)
Subtotal 80,100,000 - (80,100,000) - - -
gt
Eligible employees
SERES
In aggregate 18 December 2013 0.1168 103,200,000 - (103,200,000 - - -
ait i el
Total 183,300,000 - (183,300,000 - - -
h
Note — The share options are vested immediately and exercisable from 18 December Misk— BREIAEETYE —_T—=F+=-A+N\AH
2013 to 17 December 2023. Further details of these options are set out in EZT=F+ A+ BATE - ZEER
note 22 to the financial statements. EFBHN M BRI 22
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
Apart from as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
interests” and “Share option scheme"” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the company
had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance has
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of
their subsidiaries, at any time during the year. No contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholders of the Company or
any of their subsidiaries.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Director of the
Company or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors or any of their
respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2015, the following persons (not being directors
or chief executive of the Company) had an interest in the following
long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

oA BT R B A

RZZE—RAF+ZRA=+—H BEESN
HRESANETBEACEERL LTHRANDRN
EAEERBERGFHAEBREFNE
B A i

EXY P98 Y Ed E

RZZ—RAF+-_HA=+—H"  TIAZL
(RRBEEHTBTRABRIN RBRALR
AIRRE 7 MR RG] 5 336 1R Z REMTF
EZELMATHENARRZ B RAAHK
MR RARES -

Capacity Number of shares held Percentage
Name of shareholder BRA®E #E FrsRiAEE Batk
HK Guoxin Investment BEREREREREERAT Beneficial owner 2,112,395,735 74.93%

Group Limited ERBAA

Notes:

(1) HK Guoxin Investment Group Limited, which entire issued shares were
owned by Mr. Li, held approximately 74.93% interest in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
having an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2015.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON

DIRECTORS
Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of

information on Directors are as follows:

Mr. Mak Tin Sang has been appointed as authorized
representative of the Company with effect from 27 November
2015.

Mr. Yuan Li Min has been appointed as deputy chairman of the
Board with effect from 27 November 2015.

(1) HELEERBARHCBITRANTERSHE

RESBEARRAFHBEARRAALT74.93% BViE
BREXFIEZEEIN RZE—RAF+ZA
=+—0  BBRAQFREES LS ES
FEI6H2AREMFTE 2 EL MR -
| EHAM A TR T 2R RABREAR 1 B
BREmIOKR °

o RORH 8

B FTRBIE13.51B(1) 1§ - EEERE
2}

BEREXLEZERARREEREK - LN
TE-RFT AT ERAR -

BURSEAEECAEFRBENR - LR
T-HE+—AHEALR -
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Leung Po Hon has been appointed as the chairman of the
Audit Committee with effect from 27 November 2015.

Mr. Li Jing Bo has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 27 November 2015.

Mr. Shigeki Tanaka has been appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 27 November 2015.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions between the Group and parties regarded
as "Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements. No transaction
disclosed thereto constitutes connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction of the Company subject to, among other
things, reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE

COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company issued and allotted 183,300,000
ordinary shares at par value of HK$0.1168, as a result of the
exercise of share options to the share option holders of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the existing authorised share capital
of the Company is HK$150,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000
shares with 2,819,102,084 ordinary shares in issue. To increase
the Company’s flexibility in issuing shares for any future
investments and developments, the Company proposed to
increase its authorised share capital from HK$150,000,000
divided into 3,000,000,000 shares to HK$1,000,000,000 divided
into 20,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional
17,000,000,000 new shares. Such new shares, upon issue, shall
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares. In addition,
Company proposes to amend the memorandum of association of
the Company to reflect such increase therein.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

The proposed increase in authorised share capital and amendment
to the memorandum of association of the Company are subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company by way of
an ordinary resolution and a special resolution at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of the report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 were audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited (“Crowe Horwath (HK)"). Crowe Horwath (HK) shall
retire as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe
Horwath (HK) as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Li Feng Mao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Meng, aged 43, is an executive Director. Mr. Chan is
currently the General Manager of Jilin Xin Tian Di Investment
Limited and Changchun Xin Tian Di Investment Group Limited.
He was the general manager of Jilin Long Xin Asset Management
Company from 2003 to 2006. Prior to that he was in charge of the
Finance department of the Changchun office of China Petroleum
Group.

Mr. Mak Tin Sang, aged 59, is an executive Director. Mr. Mak
is currently the chief executive officer and executive Chairman
of Asia Fashion Holdings Limited. Previously, Mr. Mak joined
Singapore Catalyst-listed Armarda Group Limited as chief financial
officer in 2004 and was appointed as executive director in June
2013. Mr. Mak was the chief financial officer of another Singapore
main board listed company LottVision Limited between August
2001 and September 2003. Mr. Mak holds a Master’'s Degree in
Business Administration awarded by the University of Sheffield,
U.K.. He is also a fellow member of the United Kingdom Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants and an associate member of
the Australian Certified Management Accountants.

Mr. Yuan Li Min, aged 56, is executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Yuan has recently
resigned as the non-executive director and chairman of Asia
Fashion, currently listed on the main board of the Singapore
Stock Exchange, a company principally engaged in the design,
manufacturing and sales of new construction materials in the
PRC. Mr. Yuan is also a senior business analyst with American
Etech Securities Inc.. He has more than 30 years’ valuable
experience in the capital, investment and financial analysis and
handled more than 15 listing and fund raising projects in the PRC.
He was the general manager of the CAD Company of the China
Ministry of Aerospace from 1987 to 1998 and an analyst with
the Beijing Government’s Finance office from 1982 to 1985. Mr.
Yuan graduated with a Bachelor Degree in Finance at the Beijing
Institute of Technology.

Mr. Li Feng Mao, aged 46, is the Chairman and non-executive
Director. Mr. Li is an entrepreneur focused in investment holding
and management of various enterprises mainly located in the Jilin
province, PRC covering railroad communication & logistics, mining
and refinery, natural resources, property development, banking,
and financial leasing, etc. Mr. Li holds a Doctor of Philosophy
Degree awarded by the Jilin University of China.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Leung Po Hon, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Leung is currently a practicing director of Poon and
Tong C.P.A. Limited which he joined in 2001. Mr. Leung has served
as an independent non-executive director of Success Dragon
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1182) since 16 July
2015, China Investment Fund Company Limited (Stock Code: 0612)
since 1 May 2015 and Kingbo Strike Limited (Stock Code: 1421)
since 13 November 2015, all of which are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung has also served as an independent
non-executive director of Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 8030), a company listed on the Hong Kong Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange since 15 August 2014.
Mr. Leung graduated and obtained a Professional Diploma in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1987. Mr. Leung
obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration from the
University of Bradford of the United Kingdom in December 1990.
He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountant since January 1993 and a fellow member of the
Chartered Certified Accountants since January 1997. Mr. Leung
has more than 25 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
financial management.

Mr. Li Jing Bo, aged 44, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Li has over 20 years of experience in finance industry. Mr. Li
Jing Bo was appointed as manager of the security management
department of Fuyou Securities Brokerage Co, Ltd. in January
2001. He worked for Soochow Securities Co., Limited as deputy
general manager of online trading department and then became
general manager of the Shanghai branch from 2002 to September
2006. He acted as deputy general manager of the human resource
department of Essence Securities Co., Limited from September
2006 to December 2009. In January 2010, Mr. Li Jing Bo was
appointed as general manager of Essence Futures Co., Limited
and was appointed as the director of Essence International
Financial Holding Limited since April 2012.

Mr. Shigeki Tanaka, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Shigeki is currently the chief executive officer of
T&C XTF Japan, Inc. and he has been serving the T&C Group and
acting as the chairman and chief executive officer of its major
subsidiaries since August 2001 Mr. Tanaka has been working as
senior management of Mizuho Securities Co., Ltd, Credit Lyonnais
Securities, Tokyo and Tokai Tokyo Securities Co., Ltd. respectively
from April 1998 to August 2001.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 18 . 4% 3 fili ¢

Crowe Horwath.,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF WINFOONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winfoong
International Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries set out
on pages 36 to 115, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report 18 v 4% $ bl it 3

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 18 March 2016

Lam Cheung Shing
Practising Certificate Number P03552
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 455 H1: 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% ~F—#H4F A~ H =—+—H IF /%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2015 2014
—E-RE —T-ME
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B TET FET
Revenue Wz 4 12,210 5,351
Cost of sales SHEMAR (5,611) (718)
Gross profit EF 6,599 4,633
Net (loss)/gain on trading securities R5EH (ER)/ WaFE (73) 33
Other revenue Hio iz 5 7,012 8,504
Other net income HA A F5E 5 519 2,763
Operating and administrative expenses BERIBHEY (40,652) (39,976)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—AHBARKEE 31 126 -
Loss before taxation BB ATEE 6 (26,469) (24,043)
Income tax expense FEHAX 7 = -
Loss for the year EREE (26,469) (24,043)
Attributable to: PATFEAG
Equity shareholders of the Company KLREERFAA (26,469) (24,043)
Non-controlling interests IR - -
Loss for the year EREE (26,469) (24,043)
Loss per share BREE 10
Basic AKX HK cent (0.99)&{ll  HK cent (0.91) 4L
Diluted &5 HK cent (0.99)Bfll  HK cent (0.91) &L
The notes on pages 42 to 115 form part of these financial FA2EEE 115 8 2 MRS 5 HRE
statements. Z—8m o
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B 1 A B I 2 v g

For the year ended 31 December 2015 ## —F—#HF+1 —H =+4—H 1L FE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICEEH)

2015 2014
—ET-HF —T-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIT FExT
Loss for the year FAEE  (26469)  (24,043)
Other comprehensive income FREABZEBRA
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified HigrghnEEiEne
subsequently to profit or loss HH
Available-for-sale financial assets: AEHESRERE
net movement in the fair value N ERE ZEFE
reserve (net of nil tax): MIHIE 2 $58
— Changes in fair value —FADHER
recognised during the year NEEESH) 2,900 1,150
Total comprehensive loss FALHEEARE
for the year (23,569) (22,893)
Attributable to: BAT REL
Equity shareholders of the RATE=FFEA
Company (23,569) (22,893)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A = -
Total comprehensive loss FRAZHEBELTE
for the year (23,569) (22,893)
The notes on pages 42 to 115 form part of these financial %’42 LR %115 B 2 M@ L F R s Wk

statements.

—&b ©

N
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & M BN ML

As at 31 December 2015 i~ E—#HF+ _H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
2015 2014
—Z-a% T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FiExT TEx FTAT FEL
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and ME - WE REE
equipment 12 4,335 945
Available-for-sale AEHESmEE
financial assets 14 6,500 3,600
10,835 4,545
Current assets REBEE
Trading securities RFEH 15 548 433
Inventories 78 16 244,811 248,362
Loan receivable Je= 17 22,081 -
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H b fEURERIE 18 4,461 5,014
Cash and cash equivalents & NIREEEY 19 11,018 41,507
282,919 295,316
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRE 20 5,468 9,415
Net current assets RBEEFE 277,451 285,901
NET ASSETS EEFE 288,286 290,446
Capital and reserves BRA R e
Share capital [ 23 140,955 131,790
Reserves ) 24 147,331 158,656
Total equity attributable to XA REZHIFHE A
equity shareholders PEE R A5
of the Company 288,286 290,446
Non-controlling interests  FFIZMRIE = -
TOTAL EQUITY mER 288,286 290,446

HREHEF 1B ZEAYBRETIH
BEEN T RE=A+N\BHEREE
FIEE - WHTIIESRREES

The consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 115 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18
March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yuan Li Min Mak Tin Sang
RiIR BRE
Director Director

EFE EF

2 Y RERR B 55 B TS #R R

\

The notes on pages 42 to 115 form part of these financial FA2EHEE 115
statements. Z—8m o

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 5% & HE 33 55 B %

For the year ended 31 December 2015  #% ~F—#4F A~ H =+—H IF /%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ALARGERE ARIEEE

Reserves
e
Capital
redemp-  Share Fair Non-
Share  Share tion option  value Retained controlling  Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve  profits Sub-total  Total interests  equity
Rr BhRE FER
RE BiYEE EEGE  REATERE RRRN N 8% EE  £ER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr Thr TEr TEr TEr TEr TEn T TEn
At 1 January 2014 RZE-RF-F-H 131,582 4785 121 9,505 1,080 165,781 181,272 312,854 - 312804
Comprehensive income: 2ERA
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (4043 24043 (24043 - (408
Other comprehensive income:  £HZEN A -
Fair value changes on available AHEHESHEE
for-sale financial assets LATERY - - - - 1180 - 1150 1180 - 1150
Total comprehensive ERZE
loss for the year FReE - - - - 1150 (24043 (22,893)  (22,899) - (2289
Shares issued under BRIETEIT 2 BRIk
share option scheme 208 456 - (179 - - 277 485 - 485
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - ) - 41 - - - -
At 31 December 2014 R-E-mE+-A=+-H 131,790 5241 121 9,285 2230 141,779 158,656 290,446 - 290,446
At 1 January 2015 R-E-RE-P-H 131,790 5241 121 9285 2230 141,779 158,656 290,446 - 290,446
Comprehensive income: 2ERA
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (26469) (26469) (26,469) - (26469)
Other comprehensive income:  EA12EMA :
Fair value changes on available AHRHESHEE
for-sale financial assets ZDTEES - - - - 2000 - 2900 2900 - 2900
Total comprehensive ERZE
loss for the year FREE - - - - 2900 (26,469) (23,569) (23,569) - (23569)
Shares issued under BRIETEIT 2 BRIk
share option scheme 9165 21,529 - (9,285) - - 12244 21409 - 21409
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE+-A=1-H 140955 26770 121 - 5130 115310 147,331 288,286 - 288,286

The notes on pages 42 to 115 from part of the financial

statements.

42BE2F 158 2 WK S HmE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows £S5 H£iRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% ~F—#H4F A~ H =—+—H IF /%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2015 2014
—E—hHFE —Z—NFE
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BsE FBT FH&T
Operating activities R
Loss before taxation FRATAIE 1B (26,469) (24,043)
Adjustments for: AT HEE -
(Surplus)/deficit on revaluation BFEMN
of buildings (BER),/ B4 (32) 46
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE + i g 21 22
Depreciation of other HmmzE - BB
property, plant and equipment KB E 125 105
Interest income AEWA (61) (102)
Net unrealised loss/(gain) on trading RGEBEH I REH
securities B8 (W) F58 73 (33)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEMZE - BE K&
property, plant and equipment &8 () 8 (360)
Write-back of provision for FREERK AR 2 O
construction costs - (2,449)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary SRk EENS E o) gy (126) -
Changes in working capital: EEESED
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERD,(35m) 3,551 (105)
Increase in trading securities R GEHIEN (188) 61)
Decrease in trade and H 5 & E Ath e AR IR
other receivables Ve 551 14,233
Increase in loan receivable FEMCE SR N (22,081) -
Decrease in trade H 5 & E A ARIE
and other payables Ve (3,947) (5,379)
Cash used in operations KEFMACES (48,575) (18,126)
Tax paid BTRIE
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREEFEH - -
Net cash used in operating activities &KZXKFEAREFEH (48,575) (18,126)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows £S5 B iR B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2015  #% ~F—#4F A~ H =+—H IF /%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
2015 2014
—T-HF C—TIF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
PsE FBT FA&T
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of BAYIZE - BB REE
property, plant and equipment pARE: (3,880) -
Proceeds from sale of LEME - BB K&
property, plant and equipment Fr8s0R - 360
Net cash inflow on disposal of HEMRBRARZ
a subsidiary WM FEE 495 -
Interest received B U E 62 102
Net cash (used in)/ generated from RETE(FER)EE
investing activities BeFw (3323 462
Financing activities RERE
Proceeds from shares issued IEARERT &I T
under share option scheme BEITIR G 2 TS RIE 21,409 485
Net cash generated from RMETEfEEZES
financing activities TREE 21,409 485
Net decrease in cash and RERRELEEBEY2
cash equivalents B FEE (30,489) (17,179)
Cash and cash equivalents at the RENZERERES
beginning of the year ZEY 41,507 58,686
Cash and cash equivalents attheend REXRZHEERRE
of the year ZEY 19 11,018 41,507
The notes on pages 42 to 115 form part of these financial F42BEF 115 B 2 M AL S8 Bk
statements. Z =85 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wingfoong International Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and acts
as an investment holding company. Its shares are listed
on the Main Board of the The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office of the Company is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The principal
place of business of the Company is changed from Room
3201, 9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong to Rooms
1904-1916, 19/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect from 2 January 2016. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are property
development and construction, property management,
money lending, provision of horticultural services and
securities trading.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

a)

b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective
for the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements
set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts
have been amended with reference to the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and to streamline with
HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 have
been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements based on the
new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance or Listing Rules but not under the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance or amended Listing
Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on the initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting years reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEHEHECOR (4)

(CONTINUED)

b) WBE I S R E ()
R EREMEACHEEER
[ELRAE - WA T &5 ECR
Fregig  THEBEEDNRESZAF
EFIER

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- buildings (see note 2(f)); and — BF(RME20) &

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale — DEARIHEHERLFARFHHE
securities or as trading securities (see note 2(e)). Hrzer T A (RHE2e) -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity FREMNEFEEBYHHREEL 2
with HKFRSs requires management to make M mEFEEEEEL HIE - 4
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect TR - M EHE - et &
the application of policies and reported amounts of mETEFHEEE  BE WAR
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates M 2 R ER M AR - 25
and associated assumptions are based on historical B R EBEBRERIRERELSR K
experience and various other factors that are believed to ERERERZSEBEATIESE
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of ZEBEEMEARAEEMEL - AT
which form the basis of making the judgements about SERBEREEER BRI RENRE
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily i ARAEGHERENEERA
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ BIELHE 2 EE - BERHTAE
from these estimates. BRIMEFT BT -

AR B R AR R RARRRER
TR EHE o HE FFT AT 2 B2

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is FRBEHBBER 2HHE - AIRZ
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the R E SR  WE rHEET
period of the revision and future periods if the revision BRI B E R AR RERE - AR

affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty

are discussed in note 28.
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Notes to the Financial Statements % M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % 3

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

d)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’'s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

C— A T A = A H AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. BEAEHBOR (8)

)

d)

Vg ks
REDBRPBERRANZRZEND
BIHB zeBAEHRETALA
WITEFNEIREERREZIMH
ERPBRER - AHERDEE
REBZ BEEBHLMIEME KT
EARENSBERLMIEVE 2
RIR o

MM BREMS - FRIEDEAEN
LLEY B R B e PR EE B IR 75 1
B AETFMNE  FPHALKE
Al BEDEEREERRBE 2T
EREEREZMETEMAN B
AIEEEXRKLENBIGETA

C °1IEU§EE§j<ZZ%%%$§}iE MR
A LR ARMBARE - AIRETE
BB 2 ) e e DB i

MEAREHAEEEHHNER -
AR EE 2 EE AR A3k
BRESTEOR  BEENEB
HERTEEIMPERDR - A

HREBHEBZHE - RFHEASK
BERARIE  EEEEEER

(AAEEREMBETRHE) -

KRB AR ZIRE B IR % B A
EE ?ﬂﬂiﬁAHAGQW%ﬁ
*® e NAEZER  RHK
Iﬁui/ﬂu%&.%.mﬁ%ﬁﬁ§$2
EARBREN  ORHERESY
TEERR A 2 A0 - EE AR EIRE
RHMEEZ RERBEBRTIRER
B W2 TOERET LA - M
ERPORERMETRZIERT -

Annual Report 2015 —F—F4EFER

45



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEWHBOR ()

(CONTINUED)

d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued) d) BB A v) K FEde B b 2% (4)
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a IR ERENB AR 2 ST
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the HENHERBARR  E94RE
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not B AREZFERFTEAZEM
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those Ht G Z5BRAFENAEE
interests which would result in the Group as a whole BRAEFGCHABRERE ZZE
having a contractual obligation in respect of those Bm2EHEE REEBHEHM
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. T ASREAGEER A FESAE
For each business combination, the Group can elect to o I M 2 BTG BT BB A B AT S RI B E
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value FEZABENDRET 2T

or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the R I AR A B AR R L A A
consolidated statement of financial position within SHES] - WWAKRETBRREKZ
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity feiEA - RASEBZEERN 2 TR
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests o ERAEEREGAZHIE
in the results of the Group are presented on the face = N H AW ER 3= AF 5 B T IEIE
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and % #E 2 B KX R IR R 20 I sk S B
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other wEREEBEARETRES -

comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that REERME ARz fEm &8I &
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as BYEKEGIE  JERERZS
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to EHREYRA RSN R IR
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests RS HEEL AR - URBRABRE
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in P BEUmEEEERAR
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to R m R e o

goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is fii A S B R = T B A R 4 - Al
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that HEWIELEZM B AR 2
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised & WHRBERAEREE - RNE
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former HEE LK A AR - RZATMT B A BREE
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised ZEMERR AT ERER  ZEE
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value BRIECRMEEVIERZAT
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(e)) E(RMFE2(e)) S BEE AR E
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an ERAREV SR Z KA (Q0#E
investment in an associate or joint venture . ) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(h)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal

group that is classified as held for sale).

e) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company's policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in

subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless
it is determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value
is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on

their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of
each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does
not include any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with

the policies set out in note 2(qg)(iv) and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-
maturity securities are stated at amortised cost less

impairment losses (see note 2(h)).

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEAFHBOR (%)
(CONTINUED)
e) Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued) e) B B B A Gl g 2 L i BE ¥E
(#7)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any TERA FRBINEFREFERAR
of the above categories are classified as available-for- AHHEERS - REWEHR - 2
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period FERTAENGE  TAELE
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or A2 BEBEENEAM R ERA SR
loss being recognised in other comprehensive income RN R FEF B2 BETELR
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value At AERDISMER - RS BM 5L
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity AR TAREE AR FETEER
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active SR B ZRAFFRERM BN
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value 2R IR XA IR BB R FE R ( R Y
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised E2(h) » RAES 2 BREMARE
in the statement of financial position at cost less 7B M B IR B R A RORE
impairment losses (see note 2(h)). Dividend income B W0 BIREME 2(a)(iv) & 2(q)
from equity securities and interests income from debt (V) P82 RN B as R A RERR o 1
securities calculated using the effective interest method RRERZEREAXTUREL
are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the BiEE2(h)) - RIS RER R Rt as
policies set out in notes 2(g)(iv) and 2(g)(v), respectively. ABEEMHDBERER -

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 2(h)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date ZERERAREAFBEAFR
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or B2 BT AR SR AN S B G
they expire_ %55%&%?&@]%@25%%5@% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FBEEGHHBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)

f) Property, plant and equipment f) W%~ B B

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see note
2(g)) are stated at their revalued amount, being their fair
value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does not
differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair values at the end of reporting period.

The other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(h)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for
own use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in
property revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged
to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the
amount held in the reserve in respect of that same
asset immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see note 2(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
property revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not
reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the term of lease.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives of 40 years.

— Furniture, equipment and motor vehicles are
depreciated over 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

g) Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease,
is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(CONTINUED)

EEEEralBOR (8

g) R (40)
i) LA AR ETEA N B

g) Leased assets (continued)

ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

iii)

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are recognised as property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(f).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(h).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property or is held for
development for sale (see note 2(i)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h) Impairment of assets

i

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
other current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h) Impairment of assets (continued)

i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities

and receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other current receivables, loan
receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. The Group first assesses whether
impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset'’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements % M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —F—H 1| —H =+ —H I F%&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEAEHBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
h) Impairment of assets (continued) h) AWM (8)
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities Q) ETER IR ARG E R
and receivables (continued) HAEENRIAZ W (e ()

— For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of loan receivables and
trade receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against debtors directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

h) Impairment of assets (continued)

ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the property, plant and
equipment (other than properties carried at revalued
amounts) and investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial position may
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable

amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEAFHBOR (%)
(CONTINUED)
h) Impairment of assets (continued) h) AWM (8)
ii) Impairment of other assets (continued) i) HAh &2 i (H ()
— Reversals of impairment losses — EEIREEE

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset's carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

i) Inventories

i) Horticultural services

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Inventories (continued)
ii) Property development
Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost and net realisable values are
determined as follows:

— Property under development for sale
The cost of properties under development for sale
comprises specifically identified cost, including
the acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages and
other direct expenses, an appropriate proportion
of overheads and borrowing cost capitalised (see
note 2(s)). Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

— Completed property held for sale

In the case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

»

k)

)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(h)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(p)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F+ - H=+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LU Tt E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

n) Employee benefits

i

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial option pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % & —#4F A+ H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICi]{H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

n) Employee benefits (continued)

0)

ii)

iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F+ - H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEHHEOR (4)

(CONTINUED)
o) WiHBL(H)

0) Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary differences or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F+ - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEHHEOR (48)
(CONTINUED)

0) Income tax (continued)

o) PifBi ()

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F+ - H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0) Income tax (continued)
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F+ - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEHHEOR (48)
(CONTINUED)

p) PiBE 2 WSO - B R AR A
liabilities (continued) i (47)
D) 2 B BIER (G

p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

i) Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(p)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, that is, the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.
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Bm ARSI

RAVIHER R A Z FERK
BRERFHNEBEZAHEH
RPN 2 M REREA - 1t
Sh - i (1) ERFF B AR AT REAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —F—H 1 —H =+ —H I F%&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEAEBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent p) B WEER - B RRAA

liabilities (continued)

ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

i (%0
i) FAbEER R A

BEAREEAARAEBEEN

MAR LERAMEEERME - 7
BRARKREBZE MM
REME LRGSR EL
FISEMRETEY - RIZERREEMEE
MFELERBENEMBE G
B - EEEYREANE
BEEN  REZEANEE
NI EXHNREEESZ
5l e

AR SR A HH A 07 b A ) T BRI B
K- s HEEB KRR EHh
o REBMEAREASAS
&+ B IELE B SN 9 A] g
MR B REEEMNEER
FHERBRB-IBXZERKE
2 EXRDAE  HEE
ETBEBERIAEE  RIER
A s 1) A] BE MR ©

q) Revenue recognition q) BerzmERR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

i) Sale of properties

When properties under development are
sold, income is recognised when the property
development is completed with the relevant
occupation permit issued by the authorities and the
significant risks and rewards of the ownership of the
properties are passed to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are recorded as forward
sales deposits and instalments received.

66 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

W HIRE S Wk R R EZ 2T
TE:Hr; Yoot 2 7 SR [ T RS 480

R E R AR (@A) AT T

FIEAER S ER N ERRNE

i) WEHE

HERTMERLE - BIKRA
PP B 8 JR 3 TP ERAS HE E AE
B EBARKRBRER X
RikMEEERENSEBEE
B - WaEiERE A RE
HEMEZ S Lo BN RIIE
Bz REEERS RO BN

e



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F+ - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEHHEOR (48)
(CONTINUED)

q) Revenue recognition (continued)
ii) Sale of goods

q) BeaE e

i) #HEY

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

iii) Service income

Service income is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered.

iv) Dividends

v)

— Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

vi) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

vii) Management fee income

Management fee income is recognised at the time
when the services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F+ - H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEHHBOR ()

(CONTINUED)

r) Translation of foreign currencies r) AR
Foreign currency transactions during the year are RERNFEITZIINEZGURSHHZ
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the T AMNERE ERE o PREREHIAR A
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities INERERE 2 EBEERBRRZA
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the ZHOMNEERIBE o [EHAERIFTA
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting BEERA -

period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in BB LKA INE RBEA 2 IERE
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated MHEEREBE EXHAZEXRR
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction B o AT ENNRAAINEGTE S
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated FEBHEERABRETEAYF
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are BEERABEACZEXRKBE -

translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into EIMEE 2 EETHIRERZ S A 25
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating EEXREE ZEXRERET - B
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the AR FRIA B TR & BR 2 HNE
transactions. Statement of financial position items are WMEERREABT KR ZEE
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign EBENEMEERARER - WHRE
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The HiFEEEANBILRET -

resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative RIEGIMEE XL - BHEZE
amount of the exchange differences relating to that IMBEE 2 ER =R BET 8
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or RIEERANERLERHESEN
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised. DEEBZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F+ - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

s) Borrowing costs

)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

2. BEAEHBOR (8)

s) 5 £ AR

t)

B ERVEEFTEREM[S
AARARTERGHHENEER
EHRBNEEREAEENMERZE
ERARZ 8D - REERAR
HES RS

BRAEEBREEXRA—MONEE
RAERREENRXESL - EEX
EERARREEERARE RGN
HHE AT LR R R TEE 1T IR
BERL - ERAEREERAL
ERBERHEMDTHBAID 2
HBIIED Fl el - BERARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —F—H 1 —H =+ —H I F%&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

t) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vilA person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ## FF

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —F—H 1| —H =+ —H I F%&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit
plans: Employee contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce the complexity
of accounting for certain contributions from employees
or third parties under defined benefit plans. When the
contributions are eligible for the practical expedient provided
by the amendments, a company is allowed to recognise
the contributions as a reduction of the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered, instead of
including them in calculating the defined benefit obligation.
The amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the Group only operated the defined
contribution plans for its employees.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-
2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related party disclosures has been amended to expand
the definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of
the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact on the Group's
related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain
key management personnel services from management
entities.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F+ - H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

4. REVENUE 4. Wid
FREEANSERZSBWT :

The amount of each significant category of revenue during

the year is as follows:

2015 2014
—EBE-RF —TWF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of properties YISEIHE 7,100 -
Provision of property management REEREMEEE RS 2 W 175 457
services
Provision of horticultural services R ERERER 2 B 4,854 4,894
Loan interest income B BUA 81 -
12,210 5,351
OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 5. Ml 23 B Al A R
INCOME
2015 2014
—EB-RF —ETWF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FH&T
Other revenue Hipugzs
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 61 102
Management fee income (note 27(c)) ERBWA (FE27(c) 204 2,510
Rental income from operating leases LB WA 6,395 5,840
Dividend income from equity securities R AR EH R B U A 23 20
Others Hith 329 32
7,012 8,504
Other net income H X FEE
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HEWE - BREREE
property, plant and equipment 2 (B18), W= (8) 360
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of buildings EF &4 & (E4L) 32 (46)
Write-back of provision BENAEE
for construction costs o - 2,449
Others Hith 495 -
519 2,763

ER - KATRAFEFABEZNS
REESLEEA142,0008 T (- FE—N
F 1 102,00087T) °

During the year, the interest income that was derived
from financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss
amounted to HK$142,000 (2014: HK$102,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6.  BRBLWI
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREATEEE R
2015 2014
—E-8F —ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt FET
(a) Staff costs (including directors’ (a) BEIFAK
emoluments) (BEEEME)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMBETR 26,819 25,668
Contributions to defined contribution RERRET SR
retirement plan (note 29) (M95E29) 345 371
27,164 26,039
(b) Other items (b) HfhEE
Amortisation of leasehold land iy = bz ke 21 22
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEX
equipment BT E 125 105
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN &
— audit services — BRI 481 440
— other services — EAth AR 140 60
Operating lease charges: EERARY
minimum lease payments SIRFAO T
— land and buildings — T RAEF 2,322 4,847
Cost of inventories (note 16) FERA (FiFE16) 5,611 718
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

7. INCOME TAX 7.
a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in these jurisdictions.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 has been provided for as the
Group has no estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong for both years.

b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss at

Wi f3 8¢
a) BAr I de 2 B

REAREREBRLHEHRES
B AEBEEAHNZSEREM
PSR -

ARAEERREFTFERES ST
EAAFTERDUE A - B E L A
2 ZT—HFER-_ZFT—WNF+_A
Zt—HLEFEZBBREHE
f& -

b) BRI B it S B S Ly

the applicable tax rates: whEHE IR
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZTMmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FET
Loss before taxation FREERIE1E (26,469) (24,043)
Notional tax on loss before BREAIEE  BEMIA
taxation, calculated at the rates EEMAEEEEA
applicable to losses in the REBZHETE
jurisdictions concerned (4,367) (3,967)
Tax effect of non-deductible TR ER 2%
expenses a8 946 407
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERRTMA BT E (40) (83)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZ RATRIBEEE
not recognised Y- 4,078 3,700
Tax effect of prior years' tax losses NESHBRETFE 2FIE
utilised this year Bz MG E (4) (79)
Tax effect of temporary difference RERZERNEERE Y
not recognised g e (613) 22
Actual tax expense BEEMIARAX = -
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % 3

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules and section 383 (1) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

C— i AE A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. WYL
B FHBAIRESDAED (S

383N E) Al (BEEEF=E

= —HIEEE
(LU E)

SER)

BROE_MRBEcAFEEEHEM

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) N
Regulation are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2015
fee in kind bonuses contributions Total
§ 28 —E-1%
EZHE  REVAR BERA  RAGHEIER fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TER TAT TEn AT
Executive directors: HOES:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, g
(resigned on 27 November 2015) ~ (R=B—-H&+-A-T+AEZR) = 2,405 630 - 3,035
Cheong Sim Eng, Ba%
(resigned on 27 November 2015) (R=F-1F+-A-+tB2%) - 19 630 19 668
Cheong Hooi Kheng (resigned on EEH
27 November 2015) (H=%- ﬂﬁ A-ttREZE) - 981 630 17 1,628
Chen Meng (appointed on BE(R=T ¢
6 November 2015) - BREHER) - 458 - 3 461
Mak Tin Sang (appointed on %‘%%(E@:?ﬂii
6 November 2015) T-ARBEZR) - 458 - 3 461
Yuan Li Min, Chief Executive Officer R @ THEH (N =217
(appointed on 6 November 2015) T-ANHEZA) - 1,222 - 3 1,225
- 5,543 1,890 45 7478
Non-executive director: FHTES .
Li Feng Mao, Chairman (appointed ~~ ZEXEFE (R -Z-1F
on 6 November 2015) T-A HEZ E) - 1528 - 3 1,531
Independent non-executive BUFHTES !
directors:
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert [resigned RS (R=5—1%F
on 27 November 2015) T-AZT+AZH) 136 - - - 136
Leung Wing Ning, Chairman 2AE FR(W-Z-1F
resigned on 27 November 2015  T—A-T+AEH) 136 - - - 136
Kwik Sam Ak (resigned on =g (R=5-1%
27 November 2015) T-A=tLHZH) 136 - - - 136
Leung Po Hon (appointed on 2EE(M-F—1F
6 November 2015) T-ARBEZR) 61 - - - 61
Li Jing Bo (appointed on ZER(N=F—1F
6 Novernber 2015) T-BAREZM) 55 - - - 55
Shigeki Tanaka (appointed on BhE (R-2-1F
6 Novernber 2015) T-FrBEZA) 55 - - - 55
579 - - - 579
579 7.0M 1,890 48 9,588
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

8. HIA4 (B

(CONTINUED)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2014
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e EE “I-E
g2He  REDHE BEEL  RIGHEIRS aif
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HKS$' 000
TEn TAn TAn AL AL
Executive directors: g
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Eng
Joint Chairman (with effective GEER(E-T-IE
from 23 June 2014) AAZTZABER) - 2,762 1,200 10 3972
Cheong Sim Eng, B4R
Joint Chairman (with effective BETR(EZT-RE
from 23 June 2014) NAZTZAEREW) - 15 1,200 15 1,230
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEH - 1,176 - 17 1193
- 3,953 2,400 42 6,395
Independent non-executive BUkHTES:
directors:
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert RIS 150 - - - 150
Leung Wing Ning 2Kz 150 - - - 150
Kwik Sam Aik P=% 150 - - - 150
450 - - - 450
450 3,953 2,400 42 6,845

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors
of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Company or as compensation for loss of office. There
was no arrangement under which a director has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the directors held share options
under the Company’s share options scheme. The details of
the share options are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
Option Scheme 2013" in the Directors’ Report and note 22.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two directors (2014: two directors), details of whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. Details of the
emoluments for the year of the remaining three (2014: three)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

.4 d5c o H 2 0 B

RERALEBERHH2ES  BEM
FEE(ZT—NF: MABEEF) H
HENES P - REREBK=S
—TOF:ZR)ZERFHESR

highest paid employees are as follows: ZBeFEET
2015 2014
—E-0F —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
Tt FHET
Salaries and other emoluments e R H Ab 7,680 8,873
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAL 1,750 800
Retirement scheme contributions RIRFHEIE TR 50 50
9,480 9,723

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose emoluments fell within the following
bands are as follows:

MerEATHEz&=%MER GFE
EYITHAE)BEMT ¢

2015 2014

—EB-RF —TF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AH

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T % 3,000,000 77T 2 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T 2 3,500,000 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 77T 2 4,000,000 77T 1
3 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

10. LOSS PER SHARE

11.

a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$26,469,000 (2014: HK$24,043,000)
and the weighted average number of approximately
2,665,825,000 (2014: 2,632,130,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

b) Diluted loss per share
The calculation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 does not assume
the exercise of the Company'’s outstanding share options
as the exercise of the share options would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines (products and services).
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
reportable segments. The Group commenced the money
lending business during the year ended 31 December 2015
and this was a new operating segment of the Group. The
Company'’s directors are of the opinion that money lending
business will provide good opportunities for the Group to
diversify and enhance the Group's revenue stream. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

— Property development: this segment develops and sells
the Group's properties.

— Money lending: this segment provides loan financing to
corporate entities and individuals.

— Horticultural services: this segment provides horticultural
services.
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10.

11.

(i34

a) 9B IEA g iR
BREXEBIRBEFARQGE
w5 A AL E1E 26,469,000 7T
(= Z — P4 : 24,043,000 7T )
MERNBBETE R INEFIIEH
#492,665,825,000 % ( — &= — P4 4F :
2,632,130,000 %) 515 o

b) 4 B i 3 Ml 41
HEHEE-ZR-RAFR-ZT-MF
ToA=T - RLEFESRBEE
BIY MERITEARRHARITELZ
FERCRE - UL Ty TR BB AR
BREERD -

Vg Lk

REBRTIADMEDEEELER
ZEDBIREGR(ERTRSE)
oo mRE R ER D B R RE AR
ARARRTEENTIELERKEN
MEBERTA—FzHA - AEE
2IATERNB -BE_FT—LF
TZA=+t—RLLEEHE  ~&E
RIS EBERE - WA KREHND
BRENE - ARBEFEAR BEEX
BRAAKENRIEERE  ERA
KIREZ AR R - &K EMR
REDBAFTABRAT 2RO -

- MEBRR: ROBRBEREHEEARE
R E

— BEER  ZOBARFEERE
AREER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

Property management and other related services:
this segment mainly provides building management
services.

Securities trading: this segment engages in the trading of
securities.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Company's executive directors monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible and current assets
with the exception of available-for-sale financial assets,
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors, accruals and other
payables attributable to the activities of the individual
segments and managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
"adjusted EBITDA" i.e., "adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where
“interest” is regarded as including bank interest
income and investment income and “depreciation
and amortisation” is regarded as including impairment
losses on non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA the Group's earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual segments,
such as auditor’'s remuneration and other corporate
administration costs.

11. 25t (4)

a)

WMEEENREMERRY : 208
TERUEFTEERS -

EHRD RN BREEFRS °

Vg B3 RNV AN

SRHE D BRI REDEER
ME * NABMITEFRIA T ER
EREREDHREEZESE  BE
RafE -

DPHREERBRMEALERBE
E-EAIHIESREE  BETH
BEENEMAREERN - 28
BERREEMNDBZHERSEN
ZENEZRE - B ERREM
FENRRIA - WMENBERERE -

W kAX IR 2EZEIEEE
ZHEBREIH (RENEEELZ
FERBHEEEES 2 HERIN)

DEEHEDHE

BRBEDERMNZFERIK
FIEEBITDA] - BI[#BR A & -
ME- - TERBHMZKEAZER
- Hep [FE ] BIERITH B
ARBERA -[MEREHE] B
EIERBEEZRERBRE - BEK
[ZFHELEBITDAL » REBZEF
W TEBRER S E2EE
EHE— R BB
REMRATITHAS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ —F—H 1| —H =+ —H I F%&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 11. Bk (5)

a) S BURHL - WA KA (D

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with
segment information concerning revenue (including inter
segment sales), interest income from cash balances
managed directly by the segments, depreciation and
amortisation, material non-cash items and additions to

BRUEIBREHAEEBITDAZ D1
BERN BHEEREEARS
(BEIEREE) DHEEEE
BrREEHRZFERA - DER
BEEBERERE RSN E
RIFBEHEARARBEIRBEEY

non-current segment assets used by the segments in DEER - D HEREE HEL2ZEH
their operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with AT BRG] B HIE 2 B E
reference to prices charged to external parties for similar B o

orders.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments REE_ZT—RAFR-_ZT—OF

as provided to the Company’s executive directors for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years end 31 December
2015 and 2014 is set out below.

+fﬁ:+—E¢$EZ§%n
REESBRRAAAAANTES
R MAREREHE 2 ENH
RFX -

Property management
Property Horticultural and other Securities
development Money lending services related services trading Total
NEER e B2 IFERREMRERE N5 it
00 014 %5 o4 015 014 205 014 015 014 05 04
“%-BEF “3-Mf Z$-RF F-PF CE-BE CT-MF C2-3F CT-MF CE-BE CT-ME C3-RF %
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000
Tén TEr TAn Thr TR TEr TEn TAr Thr  TEr TEn TR
Revenue fiom extemel customers~—~ REENEP 24t 7100 - 81 - A% 4 175 457 - S 4 K
Inter-segment revenue prle - - - - 3 4 - 109 - - pi] 150
Reportable segment revenue EPENE 700 - 8 B 175 566 - B 1 . ]
Reportable segment (loss)/profit EREER)/
(adjusted EBITDA) (fEEZERITDA) (18982) (19,325 81 - 353 %5 105 51 (1) B (18516) (17,76)
Reportable segment assets REVEEE 9428 20274 22081 - 148 1418 961 99 575 M5 274498 253106
Reportable segment liablities FEABER 4100 7908 - - B 162 18 £ - 7 4% 80%

For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue of
approximately HK$7,100,000 was derived from a single
external customer who contributed 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group. This revenue was attributable
to the property development segment.
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HE-_T—AF+=-A=+—H
IEFE BE-HINEPEELK
Z#77,100,0008 7T » :ZE P H
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11. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue of
approximately HK$1,316,000 was derived from a single
external customer who contributed 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group. This revenue was attributable
to the horticultural services segment.

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or
loss, assets and liabilities

11

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

. ARUR R (80

a) SRUEAL - %R KA ()
HE-_FE—NF+=-_A=+—H
IEFE  BE-IIBEFPEEW
Z#71,316,0008 7T ° 2B F Y
BRI AAEEAWEZEZ 10% 3
F o ERBRERBESE -

b) 2 S A LA A - B K £
Z Bk

2015 2014
—E-8F —ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
&It Fi&T
Revenue g
Reportable segment revenue WE D ERE 12,233 5,501
Elimination of inter-segment 85 0 $A A E
revenue (23) (150)
Consolidated revenue RE W 12,210 5,351
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment loss WwEDBEEBER (18,516) (17,786)
Elimination of inter-segment I BB REE
profit (23) (150)
Reportable segment loss REREELHIINER 2
derived from the Group's WMEDLBEEE
external customers (18,539) (17,936)
Other revenue and net income E s R FRE 641 2,978
Depreciation and amortisation e R (146) (127)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R P B A R s 126 -
Unallocated corporate expenses RO ARFHL (8,551) (8,958)
Consolidated loss before taxation REIRIARE BB (26,469) (24,043)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 11. 23 %iH 4 (4)
b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or b) B OB MU 2E - HRE R A
loss, assets and liabilities (continued) ZHHIE (&)
2015 2014
—E-RHF —TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets WEDEERE 274,498 253,106
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESRERE 6,500 3,600
Unallocated corporate assets RAOWMRARIEE
— cash and cash equivalents -BeRREEEY 7,653 39,432
— other assets - Hi&EE 5,103 3,723
Consolidated total assets e BEMAR 293,754 299,861
Liabilities &fE
Reportable segment liabilities mEDEAE 4,354 8,039
Unallocated corporate liabilities HEEAFIEE 1,114 1,376
Consolidated total liabilities IREBERE 5,468 9,415
¢) Other segment information o) by R¥ R
Property
Property Horticultural management and other Securities
development Money lending services related services trading Unallocated Total
1537 L B8Rk HEEERALERRE EZ3Y] #9B 3

ws oW WE o we w neus neus neus neous w4
“5-5F CRmE ZE-RF CRME C3-REF CRME CR-RE CE-ME CR-RE CRME Z3-RE CRME CR-RE R
HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSO00  HCSOO0  HKSO0 MK HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSO00 SO0 HKSOO0  HKSON0
Tar  TEr TAm TEr TR TAr TR TR TRr TR A TEr o T TAn

Interestincome HEHA - 9 - - - - - - - - i i i n
Inetest expense Hemx
Rentel ncome from

operating leases 6,39 5840 - - - - - - - - 6,39 5840
Depreciation and amortisation (1] [ (15) 1] - - (121) [107) (146) [127)
Income tax €xpense = - - -

(Gain on isposal of

asubsidary 126 - 126
Additons to non-current segment

assets during the year 3880 - 3880

d) Geographic information d) MR
No geographic information is shown as all the Group's BRAEEREREEFETIRE
revenue and results of operations are derived from and BEBEREBEEHURNES -
all the Group's assets are located in Hong Kong. i =Rlbe i = S
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y3 ~ BB Kot i
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own Buildings
use under held for own Furniture
finance  use carried and Motor
leases atfairvalue  equipment Vehicles Total

BAEER URFE

REELH 1l
<R BEERET  BARRE "E ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fign TiEn TR TiEm T

Cost or valuation: BASEE
At 1 January 2014 RZE—-m§—-HA—-H 970 160 3,223 2,027 6,380
Disposals & - - (15) (1,462) (1,477)
Deficit on revaluation BB - (46) - - (46)
Less: elimination of A REEHH
accumulated
depreciation - (4) - - (4)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WF
+-A=+—H 970 110 3,208 565 4,853
Representing: HER
Cost B 970 - 3,208 565 4,743
Valuation - 2014 fE-—E-—WF - 110 - - 110
970 110 3,208 565 4,853
At 1 January 2015 A—ZE-hF—-A—H 970 110 3,208 565 4,853
Additions NE - - 2,348 1,532 3,880
Disposals HeE - - (2,965) - (2,965)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—REAR (370) (40) - - (410)
Surplus on revaluation EftRH - 32 - - 32
Less: elimination of W BRITEHE
accumulated
depreciation - (3) - - (3)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—1F
t=A=t-H . S . 2097 . 5387 .
Representing: HER
Cost A 600 - 2,591 2,097 5,288
Valuation - 2015 BE-ZF—AF - 99 - - 99
600 99 2,591 2,097 5,387
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. W3 ~ BB Bt i (A1)
(CONTINUED)
Interests in
leasehold
land held

for own Buildings
use under held for own Furniture

finance  use carried and Motor
leases at fair value  equipment Vehicles Total
RRERE
BREIER URFE
BHEELH L1l
2R BEERET  BRKRRE AE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TR TiEm Tign

Accumulated amortisation SEtHERITE
and depreciation:

At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE-f—H 240 - 2,995 2,027 5,262
Charge for the year AEELH 22 4 101 - 127
Written back on disposals HERED - - (15) (1,462) (1,477)
Elimination on revaluation s - (4) - - (4)
At 31 December 2014 RZET—WF

+ZA=+-H 262 - 3,081 565 3,908
At 1 January 2015 R=F-1F—A-H 262 - 3,081 565 3,908
Charge for the year KEEXH 21 5 120 - 146
Written back on disposals HERER - - (2,957) - (2,957)
Written back on disposal HE—AREAR

of a subsidiary (320 (40) (2) - - (42)

Elimination on revaluation EfEEH - (3) = = (3)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—R%F

ToA=TR T S T L |
Carrying amount; BREFE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF

+=A=+-8 357 99 2,347 1,532 4,335
At 31 December 2014 RZE—mF

+-A=t+-8 708 110 127 - 945
The revaluation surplus of HK$32,000 (2014: deficit EHEE 32,0008 (= —PME : B
HK$46,000) has been recognised in the consolidated A 46,0008 ) ERNGEE B RER
statement of profit or loss. Had these buildings held for own NEZER e BESIRRAR 5T
use been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, E5 . EE®EMERA375000% T
the carrying amounts would have been HK$375,000 (2014: —ZF—PY4E : 423,000 ©

HK$423,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y3 ~ B Bt i (%)

(CONTINUED)
FEAE F1 PR 2 A

Revaluation of buildings held for own use

R-E-—RFR-_FT-—HF+=-A
=tT—B BFREA-—R2BIUMGE
B2 FEBERANEETEHNMGE T
ROMEBHEERAFEIERZE
Fo

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, buildings were revalued
based on net replacement cost by an independent valuer.
The following table analyses the buildings carried at fair
value, by valuation methods.

a) ATHEH

a) Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements using

AVEFE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs (Note)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ARRlEE HiEX BERRAHE
WEBTEHRE TEEGAZE HAZE(HH)
1R #21 £3R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
Recurring fair REHLTF
value measurement BitE
Buildings held for own use: HEBRRT:
— In Hong Kong -ER
As 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=t—-H - - 99
As 31 December 2014 RZE—NFE+=A=+—H - - 110
Note: For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the assets are not W ME=ATAFENEMS BEZEH

based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
there were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

ABBRIARREABEDS AR (T
AEERARE)

RBE_T-—AFLR_F-NF+=
A=Z1T—HLEFE F14 F28Rk
FIR AL EER - ARERKEE
RN REREMFHIBTRBE LR
ZRHAHERSRE 2B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

12. W3 ~ W Bt (A1)

Revaluation of buildings held for own use (continued)

Fefi: 0 A Z AN ()

b) Movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3

b) AF %S5 3 8 A TG R R a2

fair value measurement 1/}

Buildings held for
own use in Hong Kong

KEERET-BE

2015 2014

—E—FHF —ZUE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FiET FAT

At 1 January Rn—A—H 110 160
Depreciation charge for FEREER

the year (5) (4)

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation BERAR (B4 32 (46)

Disposal of a subsidiary HE—fH B AR (38) -

At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 99 110

)

d)

Revaluation surplus of HK$32,000 was included in the line
item of “other net income” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to reverse a revaluation deficit of the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group's buildings were revalued at 31 December 2015
and 2014 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ") and
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited (“Savills”),
respectively. DTZ and Savills are independent firms of
chartered surveyors and have among their staff members of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of property being valued. For the
buildings, their current use equates to the highest and best
use.

The Group's finance department considers and discusses
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes, including all key inputs to
the valuations and property valuations movements as
compared to the prior year valuation report.

Valuation techniques

The valuation was determined based on the net
replacement cost with reference to the current cost of
replacing an asset with its modern equivalent asset less
deductions for all physical deterioration and all relevant
forms of obsolescence and age of assets. These inputs
include:
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d)

32,000 B T EHBHBE T ALE
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SRR —EECABRRNE
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745 10 00 O

FERBFR_ZE-—HFR_-F
—mE+—A=1+—BH5HEBL
HEMEERITERAR(DTZ))
RE-KFEEHGENEXERER
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BRI Z B R RAERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Revaluation of buildings held for own use (continued)

d) Valuation techniques (continued)

e)

Cost of construction

Cost per square feet to completion was estimated based
on the gross floor area using direct market comparables
and taking into account of life and size of property and its
facilities as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Estimated depreciation

Deducting all sources of depreciation by straightline
method over the useful life, including physical
deterioration and functional and economic obsolescence
and adjusting by the physical condition of the building.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. W03 ~ W Bt (A1)

Fifi: B A Z Al ()

d) e ()

Je2 IO
HEMRR-_ZE-—EFR_Z—N
FHoA=+—HORREmMBER
REETSLRIDELLAANE
K B R R0 2 A HI R mAE S A
B I KRR -

1BE T E

AT ERAERESETER &
REHANRERBENFTE &
EEABRMINEEN REE LME
o BT ERARRMIELFE -

FABERMLEES -

A7 B 42 P ik vl 4 T KA B
WA BLBR (58 3 8) Z ¥R

Valuation Unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Description technique input inputs to fair value
TUBRHARE
i fh{ER FBEBRAYE HATENBR
Buildings Based on net Cost of construction of The higher the estimated cost per
replacement cost HK$938 (2014: HK$1,133) square feet to completion, the
per square feet higher the fair value
BT ERrEEERA BEAARGTHRIBAET GERREKGAKAER

(ZZ—4F :1,133%87T)

Estimated depreciation over
the useful life of 58 years
(2014: 50 years)

BARRFHRNRTN\FE (=
—MmF - BATE)EEHTE

LFEHE

The higher the estimated
depreciation, the lower the
fair value

e ElS - 2 HERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinions of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

13.

B Jg§ 2 )

TRERHRIZZEAEERE &
EXEBEZHMBRARZEN - HIR
EHBARZHE EERRES
BERERBRITE -

length.
Proportion of ownership
interests held by
the Company
ARRE ARG
Place of Particulars
incorporation  of issued and
Name of company and operation  paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activity
SRR EETRER
AREH BXH RAGHE B# B IEEH
Century Elegant Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100% Provision of property
ENBRAR B TREER management services
RENXERRYE
Cheung Kee Garden Limited  Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and 450,000 - 100% Investment holding and
R ERERAA BE non-voting deferred shares provision of
100 [RE iM% K 450,000 i horticultural services
ERFEELR REARRRERELZ R
Donwin Property Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Property holding
BRREZARAA BE 2B NERE
Fort Property Management ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Provision of
Limited B 2RERR management services
BENEERERAF RUERRS
Sui Chong Finance Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Provision of financing and
Limited & 2L management services,
HERBAER AT money lending and
trading of securities
REREREERE
EEXBREFRS
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100% Provision of property
Resources Limited BB 1,000 R E @R management and project
HEERERBRAR management services
RENERERR
FRERRE
Super Homes Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and - 100% Property development
BE 100 non-voting deferred shares NELER
100 A & A5 100 A
ERFEELR
Winfoong Assets Limited British Virgin -~ 100 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment Holding
Islands US$1 each REER

RERAME  BREE1XTZ100REER
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15.

16.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 14. Wk £ Sk AR
2015 2014
—E-—fE —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT FHT
Unlisted debt securities BATERET
EE S 6,500 3,600
TRADING SECURITIES 15. R
2015 2014
—E—fE —E—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FTET FiHT
Listed equity securities at fair value EmBARES (RATE)
—in Hong Kong -5 548 433
INVENTORIES 16. #R&
2015 2014
—2-HF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FThET FET
Horticultural plants REEY 448 461
Completed properties held for sale HIELETIWE 244,363 247,901
244,811 248,362
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% 3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU L aTHE)

C— A T A = H AR

16. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 16. 1 (&)
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an WeB B AR EWANW T
expense is as follows:
2015 2014
—Z-4f —PuF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHL
Completed properties held for sale FIERETTIYE 4,811 -
Horticultural plants BEZEY 800 718
5,611 718
17. LOAN RECEIVABLE 17. MEWCEE %
2015 2014
—Z-4f —uE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Balance due within one year —FRNE|HARIE 22,081 -

Loan receivable represents receivable arising from money
lending business of the Group, and bears interests at
the rate of 4.7% per annum and is fully secured by a
personal guarantee of an independent third party. The
grant of the loan was approved and monitored by the
Group’s management. No provision for impairment on loan

ﬁéuﬂziéiﬁ%EEZK%%i%Eimguﬁz

CIRAT% W F R EE B R BB
“**mﬂ\n%mm)\ﬁ’ﬂ%tﬁﬁﬁ
e ZERNEAEEEEERE

RERFEH RZ2T—

HFE+=A

=t—8 BE/ERERERERE

receivable was made as at 31 December 2015. 1 o
An aged analysis of the loan receivable as at the end of AR BRI A B B B M R E R
the reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as RIERER DTN T

follows:

2015 2014

—hE —ZmEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTiExT FAT

Neither past due nor impaired I A HSORE 22,081 -

b 45 780 B SO (B 2 8 W S SR B S D
BRRCEZEHBARR

Loan receivable that was neither past due nor impaired
relate to a debtor for whom there was no recent history of
default.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B B B U fib M BOR 35
2015 2014
—E-—HF —ZTUF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
Amount due from a fellow JEU —FER R B A A
subsidiary (note 27(b)) 2 738 (M5t 27 (b)) - 701
Trade debtors (note (a)) FEWE 5 BR5% (5T (a) 749 719
Receivables for monies AR IERE Y5
held by the solicitor HE W
in accordance with the BB 2 W
relevant property sale ARIE
agreements - 50
Other debtors Hth e M AR IR 1,016 961
Loans and receivables B EWARIR 1,765 2,431
Rental and other deposits He kEMRE 1,433 1,877
Prepayments TERTRIE 1,263 706
4,461 5,014

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors
with the following ageing analysis based on the invoice
date, as of the end of the reporting period :

BB S REMERIERE - A BR
—FRKEHER R o

a) MR BY
REZREMBUEERR - BRE
SEE ENEZAHNBERR
ZHREE DT ¢

2015 2014
—E—FHF —FTUF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within 1 month —@ANUT 619 517
After 1 month but within 3 months —=={@A 123 198
Over 3 months BE={EH 7 4
749 719

The Group's credit policy is set out in note 25(a).

REEZ EERRENHE25(0) °

Annual Report 2015 & —TLAFREH 91



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

b) Impairment of trade debtors
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
there was no impairment loss made against the trade
receivables.

¢) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of the trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired,
based on due date, are as follows:

18. B 5) B 30l MBI X (480)

b) HEWCR B R 2 WA

©)

HE-_ZT—RAFE-_T—NF+=
A=Z+—BILFE  TEEEREK
B SRBRERBE -

T WAL 2 MBS 5 R

BRIk RRA T T miEs K
SEEENI AT S 2 B8RO
T -

2015 2014
—E—hHEF —E—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Neither past due nor impaired BE R A ER N ARRE 619 517
Less than 1 month past due 2R —EA 101 161
More than 1 month past due 2R —EA 29 41
130 202
749 719

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. BeRBE&ESEY
2015 2014
—E-RF —TUF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Deposits with banks and FRRIRTT R
other financial H 5 mirkrd
institutions 2ER 10,991 41,500
Cash on hand FHEZBAE 27 7
Cash and cash equivalents ERE TSR
in the consolidated statements ERenExk
of financial position and 2 ReRREEEY
cash flows 11,018 41,507

NRZE—RAF+-A=1+—H2ZRIT4
BIEBENTF0% Z20.02% (=T —M©
F 0% 203%) ZTEFRTE -

At 31 December 2015, bank balances carried interest at market
rates which range from 0% to 0.02% (2014: range from 0% to
0.3%) per annum.

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. {5 B JU Al HE A MR
2015 2014
—E-RFE —TmUF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade creditors BB SIRE 317 111
Retentions payable FEHREB 3RIE - 50
Other payables and HAb T aRIE
accrued charges NMIEFT X 4,977 8,909
Financial liabilities measured LS AN IR
at amortised cost L ERBE 5,294 9,070
Receipt-in-advance SEEI e 174 345
5,468 9,415
All of the trade and other payables, apart from the retentions BREMREREIN FIEE S REM

payable, are expected to be settled within one year or are

repayable on demand.

ERRER N —FA iz EK

fEI& -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. BBk B JU Al REAY R I ()
(CONTINUED)
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RIRERR - BN E ZREE R
the trade creditors based on the date of receipt of goods/ B/ RSB REDITIT

services is as follows:

2015 2014

—E-RF —TUF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —@EANT 10 8

After 1 month but within 3 months —ERAEBENBBE={EA 150 -

Over 6 months EBE < {E A 157 103

317 111

21. DEFERRED TAXATION 21. EHEBLIH
a) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: a) REMRZIELEBH AN ¢

The Group had no material unprovided deferred tax AEER-_ZE—RFER-_ZT—NF
liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. T A=+ — BB RIERE

MBENRERARE

b) Deferred tax assets not recognised b) AR HEHE 8 2 B HE BLIEE A
At 31 December 2015, the Group has not recognised RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H =K
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses EE I HEFL344,296,0008 L (=F
of HK$344,296,000 (2014: HK$322,201,000) as it is not —PO4F 1 322,201,000/87T) 2 B5f
probable that future taxable profits against which the BEGEERELEREEE AR
tax losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant B2 RS RAEEE KA
taxation authority and the relevant entity. The tax losses BEE A AR SR JE AR B A A VE R TR I
do not expire under current tax legislation. BEEZH - RBRITRBER -

ZEBIARBEL AR

22. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22. DMty R dSu 2 BE AR S5 AL B
TRANSACTIONS
The Company has a share option scheme which was KRR ZE—=FAAZ+HAE
adopted on 25 June 2013 whereby the directors of the M—IEERERE B ARAE
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite EERENSRFERERK2HEE B
eligible participants including the directors or any employee BAEESMBRARESHEMNES
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or an affiliate (BEmE R AR ARER KB
and any consultant, agent, or advisor of the Group or an NEMEE R - RIEEAKEER 1
affiliate, to take up options at $1 consideration for each TTZRERBERE BEBRERED
acceptance. The options vest from the date of grant and are HES B R T FRNEMAI 1T -
then exercisable within a period of ten years. Each option MBRER TREARNREARA]
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share —MEBRIZEURNIZBELE -

in the Company and is settled gross in shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

22. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. DRy 2y et Z HEAR B A B
(#0)

(a) BB R BEAF T

Number of Vesting Contractual life
instruments conditions of options
TA#E ERE R B ES NHIR
Options granted to directors:
RTEEBRE
—on 18 December 2013 80,100,000 Immediate vest 10 years
-RZE—=F+=A+/\H SRR T
Options granted to eligible employees:
BTEERBI 2 HERE
—on 18 December 2013 108,300,000 Immediate vest 10 years
-RZE—=F+-A+/\H VSR T
Total share options granted 188,400,000
X B R da g
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) J% JBE BE B H B I BE S 3 47 48 £
options are as follows: F:
2015 2014
ZB-0F —Z-mE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
g BR il BR
TTRE i THTRE A
HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 '000
FET T TET Fp
Outstanding at the beginning ~ E ¥ AT
of the year 0.1168 183,300 0.1168 188,400
Exercised during the year FREITE 0.1168 (183,300) 0.1168 (4,150)
Lapsed during the year FAEAH - - 0.1168 (950)
Outstanding at the end FEEAITR
of the year - - 0.1168 183,300
Exercisable at the end FERATRE
of the year - - 0.1168 183,300

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$0.5020

(2014: HK$0.2750).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had an
exercise price of HK$0.1168 and a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 8.96 years.

FABTEBRENITER 2 N
F R AEAE0.50208 T (20144 -
0.2750/&7T) ©

W_F-mE+=A=+—BHFRT
2 R T8 /5011688 7T EL 107
THHTALERHBE.96F -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. JBEAR
2015 2014
—E-1f “EmF
Number Number
of shares  Nominal value of shares Nominal value
RPEE HE BB R [
‘000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
TR THET T TET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HRREE0.05
HK$0.05 each BTz LR 3,000,000 150,000 3,000,000 150,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ZER 287
fully paid: RERE:
At 1 January ®—A—A 2,635,802 131,790 2,631,652 131,582
Share issued under BElRiETEI T 2
share option scheme (note) BETRH (M) 183,300 9,165 4,150 208
At 31 December W+ZA=t—-8 2,819,102 140,955 2,635,802 131,790
Note: Ktat -
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company issued RZE—RAFT_A=+T—HALFEH
183,300,000 (2014: 4,150,000) ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.1168 M ARBTFEERE TEETEBER
per share upon the exercise of share options. 183,300,000 & (== — U4 : 4,150,000 8% )
FAXAL(E 0.1168 77T °
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TRRFAABRERTEEIR K
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to B BEAQNREZLLERIE—Z
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary WEE - FIELBEREARR 2T
shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual BEZARZSER -
assets.
24. RESERVES 24. it

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity and market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk) arises in
the normal course of the Group's business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

a) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to loan
receivable, trade and other receivables and cash at
banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In order to minimise the credit risk on loan receivable, the
Group has credit policy on credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of the debt at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. The Group grants a credit
period of not more than 30 days from the date of billing.
Debtors with balances that are more than 3 months
overdue are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

In respect of cash at bank, the Group limit its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with financial institutions
that meet the established credit rating. Given these high
credit standing, the management does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. AT 2 G B AT B K 4

P

EE RBpERTHERR(BEIMNE
Rk - ERER R RER) DEAE
EEBZEFBRETEL - ASETE
ezERBEASERAAEEZE
B 15 E IR R BT

i)

a) o R B
rEBZEFERBRIZHEKE
B REMERIEERRTT
REELE ERECHERKZE
BEOR  WHZEEERBBEE

oo
Iy
:}I °©

SEEREERKREFNEERR -
rEEREE-EEFERE  FERE
HREMERERFZEERRK - 1t
o REBERREMRTEHEBZ
AR OISR - ARERE AR R EZ
FREAHE R ZBEEER - FLikm
5 ARREERRAKEZEE
[ AT LA KBRS o

HEHREMEREEMS « 8A
HERBEETSEZEEZRP
EITEEFNE - AEBRTFEEH
TEBBEEENREHL30R - @
“EAREEREIEHABLES
FTEREEHRERFARTE—Z
B8 - AEEBETRERES KT

s
on °

RBTREMT - ARBBEBNE
FREEEF RN BEETTIA
REIEEERR - ERZEHE
BEEANER  BERERPIRS
HEREBITREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each debtor rather
than the industry or country in which debtors operate
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual debtors. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had concentration of credit risk in respect
of loan receivable of HK$22,081,000 (2014: HKS$Nil).
Taking into consideration of the personal guarantee on
entire outstanding balance provided to the Group and the
financial information of the counterparty, there was no
impairment recognised during the year. In the opinion of
the Company’s directors, the risk of non-recoverability
of the carrying amount is minimal. Other than this, the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group do not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loan receivable and
trade and other receivables are set out in notes 17 and 18
respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

98 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

25. AT 2 S B AT B K 4
A (4)

a) A SR B (&1)

AEBEEZEERREEZEE
A2 B B T FEE TS A LE & Fr
ETERERAFE  AEAE
PEERBTFENAEENERE
BABERRBREHIE o Bk H
K AEBVEEREFREER
B o RANSREHEIR AEEHHERE
U &5 22,081,000/87L(=ZF—MN
F EEL)GEERZEER
Br o RERREHE T AREBBELRE
BEBZEANEREZZHFRZ
MIEERE  FAMEERAE -
ARAREERA  REERTRE
RIRE R E R o BRI LASN » REEI
BEAEFEERR -

7K £2 (8] 3 48 B AR AT (] HE 4R T BRfE AR
E@EEEAZEERR -

BERAREERERERRESRE
W AREREE 2 EERR 2
— S EEWBEER D HIEHNME 17
18-

b) i B A B

AEBEAENCEERBDARRSE
REZREERE  BEMNBRSKR
SETERREREEEFTIAEN
BEFREHHK o AERBEHIFTBREIA
EHERERDESHTRIAEST
BERHZERN - KMBERERT
REZHBLETESBMEA
REETHES  UEMNEEHRE
HIZRBESHL
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. AT 2 G B AT B K 4
A (4)

b) 0 B ()
TRETAEEZERABERRE
HARZHBTAOIHE  HiRES
MARTHASRE(BREREH
MEFEZNBMNF - KB FE
M R A S R 2 A K&t
B)UARAEBAZKREREZET

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be AEEE :
required to pay:
2015 2014
ik —T—mE
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
BHRIE BRIARFE
HERd R
Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Carrying
year or on amount at year or on amount at
demand 31 December demand 31 December
Rt+=A Rt=A
—FR ==l —FR =+—H2
HERER BREE FREK BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET TET
Trade and other payables E5REERER 5,294 5,294 9,070 9,070
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

<)

d)

e)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits at 31 December
2015 and 2014 (see note 19 for details of bank balances).
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loan receivable as at 31 December
2015. The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. The directors of the Company
monitor the interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no
sensitivity analysis has been presented as the Company’s
directors considered the variable-rate bank balances and
fixed-rate loan receivable are not subject to significant
interest rate risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency in which they are measured.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk is insignificant.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk because the available-
for-sale financial assets and trading securities are stated
at fair value. The directors of the Company monitor the
price risk and will consider other necessary actions when
significant price risk is anticipated.

If the prices of the available-for-sale financial assets
and trading securities had been 5% (2014: 5%) high/
lower, assuming all other variables were held constant,
the other comprehensive income and profit or loss
would increase/decrease by approximately HK$325,000
(2014: HK$180,000) and HK$27,000 (2014: HK$21,000),
respectively.
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25. AT 2 S B AT B K 4

A (4)

c)

d)

e)

RS
RZE-—RAFR-_T—NOFE+=A
=+—H AEBAZZEER
ENE@EZBFRBITFRE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 25. Ak 22 4 B Y B A
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL P (B)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
f) Fair value measurement f) AT
i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value ) BERFEFAEZEHEERE
=
Fair value hierarchy NP EER
The following table presents the fair value of the TR MEARZEE T
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of EEFENIEESRI AR
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised A WRB B EHEE
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined FI3R A FHETEMATN
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level NEESRHNEDER=ESE
into which a fair value measurement is classified HoANTFREEFEZSLEMEE
is determined with reference to the observability FEMERARASEBENITBRER
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation MREZHEMOBREETHR
technique as follows: Al - AEHIAAT
e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only o FIL/MHE: EEHRFE IR
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in A - BVRETE B H348
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at FEEXBREERTS
the measurement date REABERBEFEZ A TE
e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using o FOoOMMHE:FRFE2ME
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which AR - BIRREE 1R
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant B R AR - mAMER
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are FEMAOERE A SRR
inputs for which market data are not available 2ZAFE o RFAIERE A
HIR AT ES 2 TSR
2 8 AN BUE
e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using o E3{/HE: FAEET
significant unobservable inputs B ABBHEC A TE
Fair value measurements as at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2015 categorised into 31 December 2014 categorised into
RZ-EE+-A=1-BAVETEER WoF-MET A= T-BOTESEDER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total

4 -4 =4 ait 4 28 224 ait
HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Tin Tin Thn Tin TEL TERL TEL TEL

Recurring fair value TEMATE
measurements it
Assets gE
Available-for-sale financial HESR
assets EE 6,500 - - 6,500 3,600 - - 3,600
Trading securities R5ER 548 - - 548 433 - - 433

7,048 - - 7,048 4,033 - - 4,033
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)
The fair value of financial assets traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The Group's finance
department performs valuation for financial
instruments and reports directly to the directors of
the Company.

There were no transfers of financial instruments
between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the date of the event
or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

g) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. AT 2 G B AT B K 4
A (4)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

g) BRI (H)

g) Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, the Group defines net debt as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing borrowings and
other financial liabilities) less cash and cash equivalents.
Capital comprises all components of equity.

During 2015, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2014, was to maintain the net debt-to-
capital ratio at below 60%. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2015 and
2014 was as follows:

MEFEY—K  AEBAEBF
BHEARL T SEEERHLEARR
B BUAKEZERFRIZAE
% (BRI EEE  Httema®)
BEREMREEEBYIE - BEXR
BEMBRAKD

RZE—RFAN - RNEB ZRAKE
ZE-WELEWE - NERFER
SFEREE AR R 60% © HHERE
FABZLE  AEENGHAER
MRFIRAT 2R S ~ BITHRD - [
FRERBIRER - T EBRE K
HEEE  WRDER -

RZE-—RAFER-_T-—NE+=A

=T B EBFEYERL N
T

2015 2014
—E-REF —2-EF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Fd s THExT FHET
Total debt B 1E%E
Financial liabilities included FAE S REAM
in trade and other FERTARIE 2
payables CRAE 20 5,294 9,070
Less: Cash and cash B Re ke
equivalents EEY 19 (11,018) (41,507)
Net (cash)/debt (BRe) &% FE (5.724) (32,437)
Capital B 288,286 290,446
Net debt-to-capital ratio B FRREER
RN N/ATEA N/A 38 A

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries were subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

W_B-—HEER-B-—META
=+—8  ARFRLEAHELT
B EFIN BB EAAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 26.

(@) The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to three years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of properties are payable as follows:

BB RLTURNG

(a) AEBABEARBKLEROFAELZ
MEZABAN - ZEREZNHF
HBRA—E=F MREEWME
BRI RRED - S HERE
BEgAEE -

R-_ZE—hE+-_A=+—H &
BV PRI EEAIET 2
AREMKEASEREDT

As lessee ERAEEA
2015 2014
—E—HF —ZT—NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET T
Within 1 year —F LR 3,778 2,169
After 1 year but within 5 years —EURBEBEERFENARN 7,773 -
11,551 2,169

(b) At 31 December 2015, the Group contracted with
tenants for the following total future minimum lease

() R=B-HF+=A=+—8 &
58 52 5 2 AT o) B R IR

receivables: KHes@AENT :
As lessor EREHBEA

2015 2014
—EB-RFE —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FAET
Within 1 year —F AR 1,978 2,755
After 1 year but within 5 years —EUBEERFARN - 27
1,978 2,782
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % 3

C— A T = H IR
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27. WERHEALRS
TRANSACTIONS
a) Key management personnel remuneration a) igﬁﬂ)\ﬁm&
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEXTZEEBEABMe(BER
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's directors e8P EE o XN AR B EEHK
as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid BERHFAIMEBEZE TR
employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: A TBE) 20T -
2015 2014
—E-hHF —PF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Short-term employee benefits pSEI=EEwl 18,970 16,476
Post-employment benefits BERRAE A 98 92
Termination benefits IS RERF - -
19,068 16,568
b) Financing arrangements b) ¥Rk
As at
31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-—0fF —Pa4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary  fEUk—FE[R R B A 71 FE - 701

As at 31 December 2014, the balance represents
the amount advanced to Hong Fok Land Investment
Limited, a subsidiary of Hong Fok Land International
Limited (“HFL"), a fellow subsidiary of the Company.
The outstanding balance with this fellow subsidiary is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment
terms. The amount due from the fellow subsidiary is
included in “Trade and other receivable” (note 18). No
provision for bad or doubtful debts have been made in
respect of this amount due. The outstanding balance was
fully repaid during the year and the maximum amount
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately HK$944,000 (2014: HK$701,000).

—NFE+=—A=1+—8"
ZRIEREIBERMEREBRA
Al (ARElZRREWNEAF Hong
Fok Land International Limited
([HFLD Z B AR 285K - %
RRMEBAR ZREELHRTIE
TR TRIFEREREENRE -
FEWE R E AR 2 RIBThE
ATBESREABEUARTE] (M
18) - MEmBZ E R HREED
RIEBEREE KREERTBERER
ERBEN MBEZE_FT—1F
TZA=T—HBILFEHEKRE
B2 HEREERT 44,0008 T
(ZZ—m4 : 701,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27. EEREA RS (8])
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
¢) Other related party transactions o) HAbBEALRS
2015 2014
—E-AF —_TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Management fee income from BRRMHTTEFS B HFL
a subsidiary of HFL for share of —MEBEARWEZ
administrative expenses (Note) EEBRA () 204 2,510
Building management fee paid to RAEEFTREERHEHE B
a subsidiary of HFL for building VIR g FE IR
management services rendered on M~ HFL — K B A 7]
completed properties held for sale EFERE
owned by the Group - 270
In the opinion of the directors, the above transactions EFERA LRGN —MER
were conducted in the ordinary course of business and BIERRIZFTNE T EERHE &
on terms matually agreed by both parties. RETE °
Note: The management fee income is determined based on negotiation Misk - BIERBUATIRITNE S L5 &R
between both parties having regard to the cost of services on a BRAGEEERETE °

quarterly basis.

28. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 28. HREEHwl RO i

AND JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty Rl Ao s 3 2 2 B AR U

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows: B THREREZZEZHRWNT

a) Depreciation a) WrEx
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a M - BERBEREEMGEHRE
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after BIREFT ] AT E G
taking into account the estimated residual value. The E AEEEFHRIMEATR
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its FHREFERE (RE)  WiBT
residual value, if any. The depreciation expense for future FTHHIREAREE) - KRB ZTE
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from FZZBT % -

previous estimates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

28. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

a)

b)

Depreciation (Continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2015 was HK4,335,000 (2014:
HK$945,000).

Valuation of inventories

Management exercises its judgment in making allowance
for stocks of completed properties with reference to
the existing market environment and estimated net
realisable value of the properties, i.e. the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The
amount of write-down of completed properties is made
if the estimated net realisable value of the property
is lower than its carrying amount. If the actual net
realisable values of the completed properties are less
than expected as a result of change in market condition,
material write-down may result.

The carrying amount of completed properties as at
31 December 2015 was HK$244,363,000 (2014:
HK$247,901,000).

¢) Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectibility.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
management when assessing the credit worthiness
and past collection history of each individual debtor. Any
increase or decrease in the allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts would affect profit or loss in future years.

The carrying amount of loan receivable and trade
and other receivables as at 31 December 2015 were
HK$22,081,000 (2014: HK$ Nil) and HK$1,765,000
(2014: HK$2,431,000), respectively.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

28. WK kAt B i ()

A wh A e 5 TR 4 2 2 AR U (4)

a) e (4
mME-BELEZER_-_Z -1
F+_A=Z=+—BzHEEEA
4,335,000 L( = & — M F :
945,000/87T) °

b) FELHE
EREYHETHMEGTEZ BEE
HHE TR ERE MBS
MEZ B EEAEGERRES
AR EBRE 2T HEEREE
EXNUAEREE ZKAE) c B
¥ GRTATEEAERNERAE
EERWEFERIAELHR - B
RSk 2 B - B MEZ
FRABREELRESR - BIRE
B8] BE 1 ERHMURL ©

ERMER-_T—FRFE+_-A
=+—HZRMEE% 244,363,000
BIL(ZZE—MF : 247,901,000%8
JT) °

c) RARM (HFF
REEREREDRBESFHERER S
T2 5E B & R AT U Bl 2 AT Al i
TREE RIR - B ERFEEA
BABBEAZEEEERBIWK
e EIEL BEFIE o RERME
BE 2 MG ERRER 2

B

ERE SRR E 5 K E A FEWEARIEN =
T-RFE+-A=t+—HBZEEED
Bl 422,081,000 7t (=& — U 4F -
T#7T) K 1,765,000/8 T (=& —MM
4 1 2,431,000787T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

28. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 28. WA EEHEEF A (4)

AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

d) Current taxation and deferred taxation
Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The management evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislation. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
tax losses not yet used and temporary deductible
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only
be recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax credits can be utilized, the management'’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management's assessment is
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015, no
provisions for current tax and deferred tax were made
(2014: HK$NiIl).

29. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000
prior June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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REEZE-_Z—RAF+-_A=+—H
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H(ZZF—F : THIT) »

29. FREMEKOR TS

AEERBEFERG MBS EE
PSR ESERKNEESHENER
ZEEHITHABMAE S ([BTHE
SEr Bl - BESTEABEBILZE
ANER 2 RERFGEREE - BiKR
BeitE BEREESAEAIRESR
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BRI A PR A 30,0008 (= —M
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31.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

CONTINGENT LIABILITY 30. sARAM
In previous years, a subsidiary of the Group sold a property MEFE  AEE-—[HEHRBATHS
to a buyer. The buyer alleged that the subsidiary made —HMEFEH - BEFBBWBEBAR
certain representations in selling of the property. The buyer RHEEMERIELETER - EFA
filed a claim with the High Court in Hong Kong claiming EEARSER  EREEBERY
the repayment of consideration of approximately HK$9.8 ¥ BT 499,800,000 T 2 R 1E - &
million paid in purchasing the property and rescission of the BUB& K 2SR - FIE KRB
contract together with related costs, interests and damages. KoZMBARIRRXEHREREYH
The subsidiary filed a defense against the claim. The R ARAIEERBEFBRRDER
directors of the Company are of the view that the buyer's TEBEMEREREAREESEK
claim is based on unreasonable and invalid grounds and Bo-EREBFDZANEIEEN
therefore unfounded. In view of the inherent uncertainties HDRERN AR EEA ERE - K
of the legal proceedings, the outcome of which cannot be NAESERRTERMBEREFPIED
estimated reliably at this stage, the directors of the Company HESHE -
considered that no specific provision should be made in the
financial statements.
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 31. hEREA
On 17 September 2015, the Group entered into a sale RZE—RAFNLA+LRH AEEH
and purchase agreement with an independent third party BYE=FTBEADITUEEW
(the “Purchaser”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to wBE AEERELE - MEE
sell and the Purchaser agreed to purchase 100% equity AREEEREER(HE)ARAT
interests in Sui Chong International (H.K.) Limited at a cash 100% fi&# - K&/ 500,000 7T 1)
consideration of HK$500,000. The disposal was completed EEFER-_Z—AFT+AZ-ZTNERE
on 29 October 2015. B e

HK$°000

FiExT
Net assets disposed of HENBAREEFE
Property, plant and equipment Y% -~ BREMEE 368
Other receivables H At fEYARIR 1
Net assets disposed of HEMRBATMNEEFE 369
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENBARNEER
Consideration received EHR(E 500
Net assets disposed of HENBRRINEEFE (369)
Transaction costs RGN (5)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AT 126
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMBARZRERAFE
of a subsidiary
Consideration received BRE 500
Transaction costs R (5)
495
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32. COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32. ) i B R B
FINANCIAL POSITION
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P EE FHET FHT
Non-current assets InBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR Z&E 7,813 7,813
Available-for-sale AMEHESMEE
financial assets 6,500 3,600
14,313 11,413
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables 2 5 RHE M EWERIE 233,014 247,669
Cash and cash equivalents ReERIBEEEY - 6
233,014 247,675
Current liabilities ik =R
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAERARIA 471 905
Net current assets RBEEFE 232,543 246,770
NET ASSETS EEFE 246,856 258,183
Capital and reserves B R e
Share capital % 23 140,955 131,790
Reserves i 105,901 126,393
TOTAL EQUITY RS 246,856 258,183
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors HESgR _Z— X "F=A1+N\B#
on 18 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: HEREETE  YHTIINEERKRE
£
Yuan Li Min Mak Tin Sang
FiR BRE
Director Director
EEd BE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

32. COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

32. 2] g W IR DL R (B1)

a) A summary of the Company’s reseves is are follows:

a) A/ HENT :

Capital Share
Share  redemption option  Contributed Fairvalue  Accumulated
premium reserve Teserve surplus reserve losses Total
et BhE
&R ik (] H\B#  LVAEE ZithE it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
Tén TEn Thn TR Tén TEn T
At 1 January 2014 HoE-mE-R-A 4785 1 9,505 234,897 1,080 (123,168) 121203
Comprehensive income: 2R
Loss for the year FMEE - - - - - (2,257 2051)
Other comperhensive income: Eh2ENA:
Fair value change on avaiable-forsale THHENSHEE
financial assets LAHERS - - - - 1,150 - 1150
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERREEREE - - - - 1,150 (2257) [110)
Shresissued under share option scheme  ERESTEIT ZE ARG 156 - [179) - - - m
Lapse of share optons RN - - ] - - 1 -
At 31 December 2014 AZE-METZAZT-A h241 1 9285 234,897 2230 (125,381) 126,393
At 1 January 2015 H-2-1E-A-A 5241 12 9,285 234897 2230 (125,381) 126,393
Comprehensive income: 2EML:
Loss for the year EpEE - - - - - (35,636) (35,636)
Other comprefensive income: LUETTOE
Fair valug change on avaible-forscle THnEnSREE
financil assets LATEED - - - - 2000 - 2900
Total comprefensive loss for the year FhiEERLE - - - - 2900 (35,636) (32,736)
Shares issued under share optionscheme ERRTESTEIT 2 BRI 259 - (9,285 - - - 1244
At31 December 2015 RB-RETCA=T-A %70 12 - 234897 5,130 (161,017) 105,901
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #;% & —#4F A - H=+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32.

(LU TTtHE)

COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

b)
i

iii)

iv)

<)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and
capital redemption reserve is governed by the Bermuda
Companies Act.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion
of the grant date fair value of unexercised share
options granted to directors, eligible employees and
other eligible participants of the Group that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(n)(ii).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and the share premium accounts
of the subsidiaries acquired. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act, the Company may make distributions
to its members out of contributed surplus in certain
circumstances.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
notes 2(e) and 2(h)(i).

Dividend
No interim dividend was paid and the directors of the
Company do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
HKS$Nil).
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32.
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i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% & —#4F A - H =+—H IFF¥

33. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 33.

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued several amendments and standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

RBEE_F-HLFET2H
= HORAE R AR R
LY T4 TIRE ) Ty
L) 32

BEHFUHRR2TIEAY  BE
SAMAERMBEANARBE_F
—HFET A=t —RIEFEENZ
ERT MR (B RRE AT A E AR I
SHBHRPESR) - HGEAKEIR
B2 IERT R R o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BBz 223
ZEFTHEEN

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
ERUBREEN - —FE T -NFAP 2 FESE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture

HEBMBMESERIE 109 REBGHERE 285 2 5]
KREZHRE Ao &0 AR HHEELELTE

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests

in joint operations

HEBYBEMELERE 1R ASE] - WERFZE RS 5TEFE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 28, Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception

1 January 2016
—ET-RE¥—-H—H

to be determined

FE

1 January 2016

—T-RE—-H—H
1 January 2016

HEBMBREERE 1058 - BEMBRELERE 1257 BB GTER —T-R¥—H—H

F 28R MER] - AR EET 58 - EAEGFRIPISIE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative
HEESERE 1SR 2IBE] - HEE

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and amortisation
HEBGHERE 165 BB G ERFE IR 2EFT
JEEITE R A Al E R )%
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41,
Agriculture: Bearer plants
HEB G ERE 16 REBGTEAFE N F BT
BE ALEMEY

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

ERMBHRELRE S - KAELZ A

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BAMBHRELNFEIN =M TA

1 January 2016
—E-RF—H—H

1 January 2016
—F—XRFE—H—H
1 January 2016
—E—RF—A—H

1 January 2018

—E-N\F—H—H
1 January 2018
—F-)\F—H—H
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33.

34.

(LU Tt E)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group's financial position or
performance.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

As at 31 December 2015, the authorised share capital of
the Company is HK$150,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000
ordinary shares and 2,819,102,084 ordinary shares of the
Company were in issue. On 18 March 2016, in order to
increase the Company's flexibility in issuing shares for
any future investments and developments, the Company
proposed to increase its authorised share capital from
HK$150,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares
to HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 ordinary
shares by the creation of an additional 17,000,000,000 new
shares. Such new shares, upon issue, shall rank pari passu
in all respects with the existing shares. In addition, Company
proposes to amend the memorandum of association of the
Company to reflect such increase therein.

The proposed increase in authorised share capital and
amendment to the memorandum of association of the
Company are subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company by way of an ordinary resolution and a special
resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.
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33.

34.

RBEE_F -4+ 2H
= HR AR B OB R R
2 BT~ W kR
RS ()

AEEREFERTRRAZFERT
RERNMEAHARBEAEST K ZF
Z-ZAMA/RL AEBERSERL
MERTRERA KRG HAREE 2
MR RIRREEBTRTE

45 91 4% 2 e il e e 0

RZE—RAF+-_A=+—8 ' AR
A) Ay % TE I 7K & 150,000,000 7 7T
43 43,000,000,000 A% & @AT © MARD
7]2,819,102,084 IR LMK E 1T - IR
—E-RF=ZATNB BEIAR
A M BEOKRE RERMEITR
MHBEFEME  KRAERHEEEIIMNER
5% 5F B% 7K 17,000,000,000 A% i B 17
18 E X TE A% 7N |3 42 18 150,000,000 78
7L (9 /3,000,000,000 A% 38 A% ) -
# H0 %£1,000,000,00078 7T( 5 A&
20,000,000,000 Az E3BAL) ° 2 ZEF K
MRETRKRBEBEFRONS TEE
BERSER o o ARAIEHBE]
AARMABERAM R il pg
RGN o

BEEINEEBRARETESERK
MAFRRAEBRBRNFHIRE
7 AREFREE R BCRIBEF R gt
HERTTAIMER -
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35. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE

CONTROLLING PARTY

As at 31 December 2014, the directors consider that
the immediate parent and ultimate controlly party of
the Company to be Hong Fok Corporation (Cayman)
Limited, which was incorporated in Cayman Islands with
limited liability and Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC
Singapore”), which was incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore with limited liability and is listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, respectively. HFC
Singapore produces financial statements under Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards for public use. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, HFC Singapore disposed all of
its direct or indirect equity interest in the Company to HK
Guoxin Investment Group Limited (“HK Guoxin”) and the
directors of the Company consider the immediate parent
and ultimate parent company of the Company to be HK
Guoxin thereafter and as at 31 December 2015. HK Guoxin
was incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and this
entity does not produce financial statements available for
public use. The ultimate controlling party is considered to be
Mr. Li Feng Mao, the sole beneficial owner of HK Guoxin and
the director of the Company.

3s.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICi]{H)

VL Bt 2 P Uy

RZE—NF+_A=+—H =
REARANEET AR REEET
75 J5Hong Fok Corporation (Cayman)
Limited (—fAIRFHS ST &
AHREAF) FHong Fok Corporation
Limited (THFC Singapore]) (—®»
N M LR FT N B H R S
FrBR AR EMHAERAQF) - HFC
Singapore R0 B 7% 8 & 2= R
REVBRERARFER HE-Z
—hAF+ZA=+—HIEFE  HFC
Singapore B BREHEEREEEE
RAR([BEEE]D RERRMER
EoEERE MRZZE—RAF+=
A=+—H E5RBARRAZEE
HRRIMGRE QB ABEERE &
BRED—BREBZMKLZBR
NE MZEBEEIWEREREBREIA
HARER - FREFTHERAESTF
REE(BABEENHE—EREEAR
KABIEE) -
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Group Properties 45 )¢

Particulars of the Group's major properties held for sale as at 31 REER-ZZE—=F+=-A=1+—HFFED

December 2013 are as follows: EZETEMEFBOT -
Percentage
Gross floor area interest attributable
R E to the Group
Location Existing Use sq. m. AEEELER
ih 25 WIERAE ERHK Bk
30 units of THE ICON, 38 Conduit Road, Residential 1,953 100%
Mid-levels, Hong Kong
BEF I TFEEI8HR F=

THE ICON &9 30 &l & iz
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